This document is made available electronically by the Minnesota Legislative Reference Library as part of an ongoing digital archiving project. http://www.leg.state.mn.us/lrl/lrl.asp

# ACTIONS OF THE

1965

## MINNESOTA LEGISLATURE

	epartment
KFM	
5415	
.M56	
1965	

July 1965

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY

STATE OF MINNESOTA

Legislative Research Committee

L 50.4 2304 1965 "Actions of the 1965 Minnesota Legislature" is designed to provide members of the Legislature and other interested persons with a summary of major legislation passed during the 1965 session. This publication, by providing a topical reference to enactments and a detailed and historical analysis of major state appropriations, should serve as a sourcebook on the 1965 session. Although the report was compiled without benefit of the session laws or the bound permanent journals, the material contained herein is believed to be accurate.

The report includes a summary of changes in existing laws and new laws enacted by the 1965 session. Amendments to existing laws are not always indicated. A number of enactments have been excluded because of their minor effect both as to substantive change and limited or local application. The summaries are necessarily brief and in many cases indicate only the general purpose of the law or the major changes effected. Summaries are identified by chapter number and legislative file number. Each enactment is grouped according to its main topic; in some instances summaries are grouped under more than one heading. The headings are identical to those used in previous editions of "Actions".

Additional information on all of the laws may be obtained by referring to the newspaper edition of the session laws which should be available soon.

A large portion of this report is devoted to detailed analysis and historical review of major state appropriations and the state building program.

Members of the legislature are urged to submit suggestions to the Legislative Research Committee for improving the usefulness of this summary.

> Research Department Legislative Research Committee 12 State Capitol St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESOTA

### LEGISLATIVE HIGHLIGHTS

The Sixty-Fourth Session of the Minnesota Legislature convened on January 5, 1965, and adjourned sine die on May 24, 1965. During this period 2,249 bills were introduced in the House of Representatives, and 2,083 bills were introduced in the Senate. Of the total of 4,332 bills introduced in both chambers (many of which were companion bills), 903 were enacted into law. Of the 903 bills enacted into law, 445 were Senate files and 458 were House files. Four bills were vetoed by the Governor, seven bills were pocket vetoed, and two were line item vetoed.

A summary of the above is included in this publication.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Introduction			rage
			( · · ;
Legislative Highlights			
Agriculture	•••••	• • • • • • •	1-2
Business and Labor	t to say in a		
Banking			3
General Business	• • • • • • •		3-5
Insurance	• • • • • • •	• • • • • •	5-6
Labor	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • •	6
Liquor Control	• • • • • • •		6-7
Conservation			
Game and Fish	• • • • • • •		8-9
General Conservation	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • •	9-10
Minerals and Timber	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • •	10-11
Parks and Forests	• • • • • • •	• • • • • •	11
Soil and Water	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • •	11-12
Counties and Towns			
General	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • •	13-16
Hennepin County			16-17
Ramsey County	•••••	• • • • • • •	18-19
St. Louis County			
Crime and Correction			21-22
Education			
Elementary, Secondary and General E	ducation		
Higher Education	• • • • • • •	• • • • • • •	25-26
Election Laws	• • • • • • •		27-28
General Legislation		• • • • • •	29-33

Page

Page	
Health and Welfare	
Highways	
General	
Motor Vehicle and Traffic Regulations	
Judiciary	
Municipalities	
Municipalities - Cities of the First Class	
General	
Duluth	
Minneapolis	
St. Paul	
Retirement Systems	
State Government	
Examining and Licensing Boards	
Major Appropriations	
Revision Laws	
State Departments	
State Employees	
Miscellaneous	•
Taxation	
General	
Income Tax	
Inheritance, Gift and Estate Taxes	
Property Tax	
Resolutions	
Vetoes	
Interim Commissions	

TABLE OF CONTENTS (cont.)

Appropriation	S	Page
Table I	- Summary of 1965 Legislative Appropriations by Fund, by Year.	. 70
Table II	- Estimated "Open" or "Standing" Appropriations from General Revenue Fund and Income Tax School Fund	. 71
Table III	- 1965 Direct Legislative Appropriations by Fund, by Year	72-73
Table IV	- Comparison of Five Major Appropriation Bills, 1965 Legislative Session	
Table V	- Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1957 through 1965 - Four Major Bills	75
T <b>a</b> ble VI	- Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1957 through 1965 - Education	76
Table VII	- Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1957 through 1965 - Semi-State	77
Table VIII	- Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1957 through 1965 - State Departments	78
Table IX	- Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1957 through 1965 - Welfare and Corrections	79
Table X	- Appropriations for Education (Other than University and State Colleges) 1940 through 1967	80
Table XI	- Appropriations for the University of Minnesota for Fiscal Years 1933 through 1967	81
Table XII	- Appropriations for Minnesota State Colleges, 1942 through 1967	82
Table XIII	- Appropriations for State Institutions, 1940 through 1967	83
Table XIV	- Appropriations for Welfare and Corrections Activities, 1940 through 1967	84
Table XV	- Total Appropriation Bills	85
Table XVI	- State Bonds Authorized by the 1965 Legislature	86
Table XVII	- Summary Comparison of Senate, House and Conference Building Bills, 1965 - 1967	87-88

## Page

a poster en la seconda de la seconda de

.

#### ACTIONS OF THE 1965 MINNESOTA LEGISLATURE

#### AGRICULTURE

Chap. 34 Provides that those engaging in unlawful advertising of butter sub-HF 35 stitutes shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.

Chap. 40 Relates to livestock haulers and provides for inspection of health SF 351 certificates and permits for livestock being transported.

Chap. 68 Relates to sale and distribution of fertilizers, exempts specialty SF 398 fertilizers from certain provisions of the law.

Chap. 91 Relates to transportation of livestock and provides for penalties SF 14 for violations of rules on sale and resale of transported livestock without complying with the rules promulgated by the Commissioner of Agriculture.

Chap. 118 Makes certain changes in the law relating to the inspection and SF 429 licensing of dairy plants by providing that when a dairy plant is licensed by the Commissioner of Agriculture, the plant shall be exempt from the licensing requirements of any political subdivision except the city, village or borough in which it is located.

Chap. 119 Redefines "frozen foods" in the law relating to dairy products and SF 518 authorizes the Commissioner of Agriculture to establish definitions and standards for the frozen food industry.

Chap. 189 Provides for destruction of swine affected with hog cholera and pay-SF 23 ment of indemnities by the state to the owner.

Chap. 204 Relates to the practice of veterinary medicine, sets out definitions HF 599 and prescribes requirements for members of State Veterinary Board; Pertains to applications for licenses, registration, reinstatement of expired licenses, and revocation and suspension of licenses. Also defines what the practice of veterinary medicine shall include.

Chap. 285 Changes the name and duties of county weed and seed inspectors. SF 615

Chap. 291 Relates to marks and brands for animals, provides for the registra-SF 76 tion of such marks and brands with the State Livestock Sanitary Board.

Chap. 310 Relates to the sale of milk, cream, and other dairy products, HF 1471 includes nonfat milk solids, prohibits sales in excess of purchases.

Chap. 322 Provides that no free purity and germination seed tests and identi-SF 896 fication shall be allowed between March 15 and June 30 of each year.

Chap. 323 Authorizes the council of any city, village, or borough, or the Board HF 1183 of County Commissioners, to adopt and enforce regulations to control and prevent the spread of plant pests and disease.

- 1 -

## AGRICULTURE (cont.)

- Chap. 387 Provides for research, production and market development for turkeys HF 1010 and turkey products and provides for the appointment, by the Commissioner, of a 15 member advisory board to assist in the above effort.
- Chap. 472 Increases the amounts payable to the owner of certain diseased HF 663 animals that are destroyed.
- Chap. 530 Creates standards to be adhered to by producers using a bulk tank SF 871 for the cooling and storage of milk produced for manufacturing purposes.
- Chap. 565 Relates to unfair trade practices in the dairy industry. Expands the HF 1282 terms of the Unfair Dairy Trade Practices Act.
- Chap. 687 Relates to offering of animals for public service, requires registra-HF 773 tion with the Livestock Sanitary Board of persons offering such animals for public service, prescribes fees and penalties for violation of the law.
- Chap. 787 Relates to produce grading and inspection; defines "produce" as SF 1546 meaning decorative forest products and the products of farms and waters of this state.

- 2 -

Banking --

Chap. 46 Relates to investments that may be made by mutual savings banks. HF 327 Allows investment in the common stock of any domestic corporation except banks, bank holding companies and trust companies and in the stocks and bonds, notes, debentures or any other domestic corporation in the Ninth Federal Reserve District.

Chap. 171 Amends those portions of the law pertaining to the expenses of HF 506 organization and incorporation of banks and the supervision to be exercised over financial institutions; Provides for changes in the law relating to the functioning of financial institutions.

Chap. 315 Amends the law relating to the authorized securities of savings SF 630 banks.

Chap. 356 Relates to receipts of deposits in insolvent banking or financial HF 399 institutions. Creates penalties for those accepting or receiving deposits in insolvent financial institutions.

Chap. 369 Authorizes state banks to grant options to purchase, sell or enter HF 328 into agreements to sell shares of its capital stock to its employees.

Chap. 381 Relates to savings and loan associations, makes certain changes in SF 629 voting procedures where action is required by members.

Chap. 475 Relates to the division of banking; provides for assessment of HF 1330 examination fees against financial institutions.

Chap. 811 Establishes a Uniform Commercial Code for the State of Minnesota. HF 162 Effective July 1, 1966.

Chap. 894 Relates to the interest rate paid by banks and trust companies; HF 811 allows the payment of the interest rate established by the Commissioner of Banks which shall not exceed the rate of interest paid by member banks of the federal reserve system. Allows interest to be credited monthly.

General Business --

Chap. 2 Provides for the renewal of any religious, charitable, social or
 SF 45 other corporation not organized for pecuniary profit whose period of duration has expired or will expire prior to May 1, 1965.

Chap. 77 Describes who can organize and operate under a "declaration of trust", HF 400 and defines the term "declaration of trust".

Chap. 93 Authorizes the renewal of the period of corporate existance of SF 84 certain corporations whose period of duration has expired without the renewal thereof.

## BUSINESS AND LABOR (cont.)

Chap. 97 Relates to the name to be employed by foreign corporations and the SF 389 contents of an application for a certificate of authority.

Chap. 103 Provides that licenses for distributors of special fuel shall expire SF 670 on November 30 of each year.

Chap. 253 Relates to the licensing and regulation of real estate brokers and SF 388 salesmen.

Chap. 267 Amends the law relating to the transfer and pledge of rights held SF 755 by clearing corporations by redefining the term "clearing corporation" and changing that portion of the statute relating to the transfer of title to, or the pledging of the certificate.

Chap. 333 Makes minor language changes in the law relating to the sale or offer SF 1102 for sale of securities, the registration of securities, and the licensing of persons selling or offering securities for sale.

Chap. 388 Clarifies the law relating to the exclusion of foreign insurance HF 1115 companies from making contracts with the residents of this state by stating that a licensed registered agent of such company is not required to countersign any bid bond issued in connection with any public or private insurance contract.

Chap. 391 Adds to the law creating exception to the general rule that usurious SF 1041 contracts are invalid by stating that such contracts are not invalid if taken or received in reliance upon the provisions of any statute.

Chap. 412 Changes the description of penalties for certain violations of the HF 254 warehousing act from misdemeanors to gross misdemeanors.

Chap. 484 Makes certain changes in the law pertaining to the control of the SF 1049 sale of subdivided lands.

Chap. 502 Prohibits misrepresentation of the species of fish sold by a HF 625 licensed fish peddler, provides for revocation of license upon conviction of misrepresentation.

Chap. 504 Relates to business corporations; deals with purpose and qualifi-HF 762 cation of incorporators, and the minimum number of directors required for a board of directors, makes some changes in the provisions for arbitrators and provides for payment of expenses incurred in arbitration.

Chap. 548 Makes minor changes in the law relating to the licensing and regu-SF 1942 lation of real estate brokers and salesmen.

Chap. 565 Relates to unfair trade practices in the dairy industry. Expands HF 1282 the terms of the Unfair Dairy Trade Practices Act.

Chap. 620 Relates to the sale of certain animals and provides penalties for HF 1878 violation of the law.

#### BUSINESS AND LABOR (cont.)

Chap. 732 Relates to the organization and scope of business trusts, allows HF 1961 domestic corporations, national banks and certain foreign corporations to organize and to make a declaration of trust. Provides for changes in the filing procedure for the declaration of trust and penalties for violating the terms of this act.

Chap. 811 Establishes a Uniform Commercial Code for the State of Minnesota. HF 162 Effective July 1, 1966.

Chap. 862 Establishes controls and regulations for the erection of advertising SF 1986 devices along the trunk highways of the state. Creates a Scenic Area Board and outlines its duties.

Chap. 874 Relates to the issuance of auctioneer's licenses and allows any HF 1608 natural person over 21 years of age who has been a resident of a county for at least 6 months to seek an auctioneer's license from the county auditor. Increases the license fee to \$15.00 and provides that \$5.00 of the fee shall be sent to the Secretary of State, to be deposited in the General Revenue Fund. Provides for a written contract to be entered into by the auctioneer and the seller. Further provides for a method of application for an auctioneer's license by non-residents.

Insurance --

Chap. 160 Relates to domestic stock insurance companies, provides for registra-HF 1027 tion and disclosure of transactions of principle stockholders, directors and officers in equity securities of the company.

Chap. 233 Provides that the admitted assets of an insurance company other than HF 917 life insurance companies shall include computer systems if the original value of such system is not less than \$100,000.00 nor more than 3% of the admitted assets of such company and such cost shall be amortized over a period not to exceed 10 full calendar years.

Chap. 236 Relates to the amendment of certificates of incorporation by stock HF 993 and mutual life insurance companies.

Chap. 265 Relates to voluntary nonprofit medical service plan corporations HF 847 and allows them to provide for the services of podiatrists and osteopaths in addition to dentists and doctors of medicine.

Chap. 308 Limits the investment that can be made by domestic life insurance HF 1308 companies.

Chap. 327 Makes certain changes in and additions to the law governing work-SF 197 men's compensation, a second injury to an employee and the reimbursement of the employer from the special compensation fund.

Chap. 419 Relates to workmen's compensation insurance, establishes notification HF 1022 time for injuries caused by X-ray, radium and radioactive substances.

#### BUSINESS AND LABOR (cont.)

- Chap. 499 Provides for assessment and collection of fire insurance company HF 341 tax, and the payment of refunds and the examination of the company's return by the Commissioner of Insurance.
- Chap. 742 Increases the benefit to be received under the workmen's compensa-SF 801 tion law for burial expense to a maximum of \$750.00 to be paid by the employer.
- Chap. 815 Provides that automobile accident reports shall be made available HF 627 to representatives of insurance companies insuring automobiles involved in an accident.
- Chap. 872 Expands the type of coverage that can be offered by Township Mutual HF 1354 Fire Insurance Companies to include breakage of glass, weight of snow, ice or sleet, freezing, leakage of water or other substances and electrical power breakdown or interruption and consequent losses except public liability.

Labor --

Chap. 329 Repeals the section of the law creating class C installer electricians. SF 880

Chap. 370 Provides exemptions to the minimum wage law for certain newspaper HF 586 workers.

Liquor Control --

- Chap. 92 Relates to referendums on pledges of liquor store revenues and pre-SF 27 scribes when such elections shall and shall not be required.
- Chap. 138 Relates to intoxicating and non-intoxicating malt beverages, permits HF 592 sales at retail by breweries to certain persons who are employees or retired employees of said breweries.

Chap. 319 Allows the sale of intoxicating and non-intoxicating fermented malt SF 1473 beverages in 128 ounce containers.

- Chap. 330 Requires that the annual license fee be fixed in advance for all SF 917 "on sale" liquor licenses by the governing bodies of the various municipalities.
- Chap. 444 Relates to the possession, seizure, and confiscation of unstamped SF 562 intoxicating liquor and fermented malt liquor; makes possession a gross misdemeanor.
- Chap. 453 Makes minor language changes in the law limiting the consumption or SF 392 display of intoxicating liquors. Provides that when intoxicating liquors are sold, served, or displayed illegally in the presence of anyone authorized to inspect the premises such liquor may be seized as evidence.

- 6 -

Chap. 482 Requires applicants for licenses to sell non-intoxicating malt SF 768 liquor to file a bond with the Liquor Control Commissioner before a license will be granted.

Chap. 581 Relates to the holding of local option elections for the sale of HF 1400 liquor in villages; provides that any local authority shall have the power to impose further restrictions on the sale and possession of intoxicating liquor within its limits.

Chap. 808 Makes certain minor language changes in the law relating to the HF 1615 labeling of intoxicating liquor containers and allows the Liquor Control Commissioner to require the affixing of labels to 1/2 pint or larger containers rather than on the carton.

#### CONSERVATION

Game and Fish --

Chap. 82 Authorizes Commissioner of Conservation to designate certain areas HF 113 as migratory waterfowl feeding and resting areas, and prohibits hunting in certain areas.

Chap. 99 Authorizes the release of a person arrested for violation of certain SF 525 conservation laws upon his written promise to appear in court.

Chap. 124 Provides that when persons holding deer licenses hunt in groups, any HF 238 member of such group may kill the number of deer equivalent to the number of valid licenses held by the group.

Chap. 188 Allows taking of game birds by means of falconry during season. SF 274

Chap. 193 Provides for management of muskellunge fishing in not more than 20 HF 405 lakes, not exceeding 20,000 acres, such lakes to be designated by the Commissioner of Conservation after a public hearing.

Chap. 219 Changes the opening day of the large and small mouth bass fishing HF 56 season from May 29 to May 15 of each year.

Chap. 248 Relates to the closing of the season for the taking of any protected SF 219 wild animals, and provides that if the statutory closing date falls on a Saturday, the Commissioner of Conservation may extend it through the following day.

Chap. 275 Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to import Scandanavian HF 17 Grouse and introduce such grouse in areas of suitable habitat which shall include Itasca County. Appropriates the sum of \$10,000.00 to the commissioner for the above purpose.

Chap. 283 Provides paraplegics and other physically handicapped persons with SF 206 special permits to hunt.

Chap. 284 Describes specifications for nets used in taking minnows. SF 358

Chap. 314 Provides that the Commissioner of Conservation may open any stream SF 414 or any portion thereof flowing into Lake Superior for the taking of certain species of trout. Effective date January 1, 1966.

Chap. 318 Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to establish fishing SF 1044 regulations, limits and seasons.

Chap. 371 Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to designate migratory HF 844 waterfowl feeding and resting areas.

Chap. 382 Provides that hunting of wild game is prohibited on any land which HF 705 has been posted by the lessee of state land to prohibit hunting, such prohibition applies to all persons including the lessee.

Chap. 449 Provides minimum standards for certain types of arrow heads used HF 1349 for the taking of deer.

Chap. 481 Relates to wild animals, removes raccoon and badgers from the pro-SF 253 tected list of the state.

Chap. 507 Requires the identification of fur trappers license numbers on HF 834 records of purchase and sale by licensee.

Chap. 522 Provides for issuance of short term non-resident licenses for the SF 89 taking of fish by angling. Effective January 1, 1966.

Chap. 576 Designates the walleyed pike as the state fish. HF 2044

Chap. 900 Relates to the maintenance and operation of private fish hatcheries HF 783 and authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to approve such fish hatcheries for the raising of any fish indigenous to Minnesota waters except carp.

General --

Chap. 5 Appropriates the sum of \$25,000 to the Minnesota Outdoor Recreation
 HF 21 and Resources Commission from the Natural Resources Fund in addition
 to the funds appropriated by Laws of 1963, Chap. 790.

Chap. 76 Relates to police powers of Commissioner of Conservation and game HF 630 wardens, adds certain laws, violation of which allows them to arrest without warrant.

Chap. 181 Prescribes certain specifications for uniforms for game wardens and SF 724 supervisors, making said uniforms distinct from uniforms of other divisions of the Department of Conservation and the Highway Department.

Chap. 276 Allows the Commissioner of Conservation to post certain lands under HF 507 his jurisdiction as wildlife management areas.

Chap. 328 Provides that the Commissioner of Conservation may require those SF 701 having trapping licenses to tag all beaver and otter at the site where trapped.

Chap. 346 Provides that any person using an artificial light to locate wild HF 1307 animals while in possession of a bow or other implement capable of killing big game shall be guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

Chap. 350 Appropriates the sum of \$50,000.00 to the Executive Council for HF 2066 disaster purposes arising from the floods.

Chap. 355 Relates to wild rice, provides for the harvesting and allows the HF 335 commissioner to alter the season; makes it unlawful to harvest at any time other than during the season.

- 9 -

- Chap. 717 Provides that the State of Minnesota shall assume a part of the cost HF 540 of partition fences to be constructed on land adjoining the Memorial Hardwood State Forest. Allows the appropriation of funds for this purpose.
- Chap. 768 Relates to pest control, sets out definitions, procedures for licens-HF 1133 ing, records and fees for spraying and dusting and provides penalties for violations of the act.
- Chap. 774 Relates to watershed districts, defines benefited property. HF 1476

Chap. 775 Relates to watershed districts and provides for payment of repairs HF 1482 and improvements.

- Chap. 797 Relates to water conservation; provides for examination of air HF 965 conditioning and industrial cooling systems utilizing surface or underground water.
- Chap. 810 Appropriates money for the 14 member Minnesota Outdoor Recreation HF 2206 and Resources Commission. Makes certain changes in the law providing for the hiring of personnel by the commission and provides for additional duties to be assumed by the commission.
- Chap. 871 Provides that motor vehicles used by game wardens need not be marked HF 989 in any way.
- Chap. 902 Appropriates moneys for the conservation and development of the SF 2016 state's natural resources; provides for the maintenance of the State Historical Society for county and district agricultural societies and other agricultural purposes; for sheriff's per diem and mileage in certain cases, and for aids to local subdivisions of government and school districts.

Minerals and Timber --

- Chap. 38 Provides for security in the form of a bond, cash, certified check HF 151 or money order to be paid the State Treasurer upon issuance or assignment of timber permits.
- Chap. 184 Relates to the occupation tax on iron ore, taconite, semi-taconite SF 866 and iron sulphides, prescribes the means for ascertaining the value of such ore.
- Chap. 313 Makes certain changes in the disbursement of funds realized by the SF 143 state from the sale or other disposition of minerals and mineral lands lying beneath public waters.
- Chap. 337 Provides that persons holding certain timber permits shall not be HF 754 required to pay interest that totals \$1.00 or less owed to the state on certain timber permits.

网络白海藻属 化二酸二溴化

Chap. 338 Grants the Executive Council power to extend certain timber permits HF 755 upon the recommendation of the Commissioner of Conservation.

Chap. 641 Relates to the taxation of taconite and semi-taconite deposits and HF 927 requires the taxpayer to file on or before October 10 of each year with various state and local officials, an estimate of the tax that he owes based on production and mining up to September 30 of the tax year and an approximation of what will be produced after September 30 of each year.

Parks and Forests --

Chap. 483 Relates to state game refuges; provides that the state park posted SF 805 notices are to be in black letters upon a yellow background.

Chap. 553 Suspends the approval of certain land acquisitions or exchanges by HF 567 or with the United States within the boundaries of Superior National Forest in Lake and Cook Counties. Provides that this prohibition doesn't apply to exchanges related to the development of taconite, semi-taconite, copper, copper nickel or nickel projects.

Chap. 609 Relates to Big Stone Lake State Park; changes the boundaries there-SF 1784 of.

Chap. 717 Provides that the State of Minnesota shall assume a part of the cost HF 540 of partition fences to be constructed on land adjoining the Memorial Hardwood State Forest. Allows the appropriation of funds for this purpose.

Soil and Water --

Chap. 125 Authorizes game wardens to enforce the provisions of the law relating HF 629 to boat and water safety.

Chap. 273 Provides that after April 1, 1966 no watercraft may be equipped with SF 105 any marine toilet unless it is also equipped with a treatment device acceptable to the Water Pollution Control Commission. The above provisions are to be put into effect on January 1, 1967 on the waters of the Mississippi River.

Chap. 425 Defines "watershed work plan", and "watershed project", and declares HF 1788 the public policy of the legislature insofar as soil conservation is concerned.

Chap. 430 Allows the Commissioner of Conservation to designate all or part of SF 445 certain lakes and streams as experimental waters after a public hearing.

Chap. 513 Relates to watershed districts, requires an annual audit and provides HF 1480 that it be made either by a public accountant or the Public Examiner.

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY - 11 -STATE OF MINNESOTA

Chap. 516 Relates to watershed districts, provides for termination of existence HF 1789 of certain districts.

Chap. 647 Makes minor language changes in the law relating to watershed district HF 1473 plans.

Chap. 648 Authorizes the creation of a repair fund for watershed districts. HF 1474

Chap. 649 Authorizes a public hearing and order when work on watershed districts HF 1475 is to be done under contract with a governmental agency.

Chap. 650 Requires the clerk of district court to give notice of a hearing con-HF 1477 cerning certain rights and authority of watershed districts to the secretary of the Water Resources Board. Provides for the method by which the managers of the watershed district shall be appointed by the Water Resources Board.

Chap. 651 Authorizes the board of managers of a watershed district to petition HF 1478 for a change of boundaries.

Chap. 652 Relates to the submitting of an over all watershed district plan by HF 1481 the district managers to the governing bodies of all municipalities and various county officials.

Chap. 785 Authorizes the boards of county commissioners or the district court SF 991 to cause the construction of dams, structures, and improvements to control flood waters.

Chap. 873 Provides for appellate procedures and review insofar as watershed HF 1479 districts are concerned. General --

Chap. 18 Relates to the establishment of special fire protection districts HF 145 in any organized town. Establishes the minimum requirements that must be met before a fire protection district may be created.

Chap. 22 Relates to drainage in the case of any ditch situated in two or SF 47 more counties and provides the means of presenting expenses for maintenance of such ditches by a county auditor.

Chap. 54 Requires every elected or appointed county official to file annually HF 163 with the county auditor a report showing all reimbursements and necessary expenditures made in connection with his official duties.

Chap. 56 Provides that counties may not sell personal property valued at over HF 421 \$500.00 unless there is an advertisement for bids or proposals. Sales of such property may be made on the open market or by competitive bid at the discretion of the county board.

Chap. 72 Deals with counties of 30,000 or less and authorizes them to SF 244 appropriate funds for municipally owned and operated nursing homes.

Chap. 145 Relates to permanent improvement funds in certain cities and villages, HF 139 the assessed valuation of which consists in part of lands containing taconite or semi-taconite.

Chap. 146 Authorizes certain cities and village, the assessed valuation of HF 148 which is composed in part of lands containing taconite or semi-taconite, to levy taxes for public recreation and playgrounds.

Chap. 162 Permits payment for rent, purchase or construction of offices for SF 166 county welfare boards out of county welfare funds.

Chap. 174 Provides for tax levy for special funds of the Policemen's Relief SF 152 Association in cities of the third class.

Chap. 186 Relates to compensation of village and township assessors. Provides SF 869 that the amount is to be determined by the town board except where special laws set the salary, but not more than \$15 per day for the first two years and not more than \$20 per day in each year of service thereafter shall be paid.

Chap. 194 Authorizes the county welfare board of any county to pay salaries and HF 1083 expenses of the county attorney, such obligations being incurred in connection with welfare matters.

Chap. 227 Relates to the county state-aid street system and provides that any HF 791 county issuing and selling bonds under the authority of M.S. 162.181 shall certify annually the amount required to pay the principal and interest on the obligation and the Commissioner of Highways shall direct the State Auditor to pay the certified amount to the county.

- 13 -

- Chap. 237 Authorizes the county boards of counties situated adjacent to the HF 1040 Great River Road to provide financial assistance to the Mississippi River Parkway Commission, the Commissioner of Highways, or the Division of State Parks in the construction, development and promotion of the Great River Road.
- Chap. 254 Relates to vacancies in the office of county assessor or county SF 867 supervisor of assessments and town, village and city assessors, and the appointment and terms of town, village and city assessors.
- Chap. 257 Increases the maximum cost of drainage system repairs which may be HF 181 undertaken without bids or contracts to \$5,000.00.
- Chap. 278 Provides that the deposited county funds in the hands of the county HF 1044 treasurer must be used to purchase securities of the government of the United States with maturity within 3 years after purchase. The law formerly provided for a 15 month limit.

Chap. 285 Changes the name and duties of county weed and seed inspectors. SF 615

- Chap. 286 Relates to compensation and traveling expenses of members of county SF 641 boards of counties having less than 75,000 inhabitants.
- Chap. 296 Relates to the procuring of group insurance protection for officers, HF 610 employees, retired officers and employees of governmental subdivisions and the dependents of the aforementioned persons.
- Chap. 300 Relates to public indebtedness, deposits of county funds, and the HF 641 investment of city, village, borough, county, town, and school district sinking funds.
- Chap. 309 Any city, village, town, or school district in which the assessed HF 1380 valuation consists in part of iron ore or lands containing taconite or semi-taconite may pay annual dues in the range municipalities and civic associations, provided that in such subdivisions having a population of 3,000 inhabitants dues don't exceed \$500 per year, and if less than 3,000 inhabitants they don't exceed \$250 annually.
- Chap. 323 Authorizes the council of any city, village, or borough, or the HF 1183 \*board of county commissioners, to adopt and enforce regulations to control and prevent the spread of plant pests and disease.
- Chap. 340 Outlines the duties of the clerks of certain cities, villages, HF 1143 boroughs, and towns relative to elections.
- Chap. 351 Relates to the care and custody of moneys belonging to patients in SF 589 county nursing homes.
- Chap. 384 Permits certain towns in certain cases to appeal from the order of HF 794 a county board assessing damages or benefits in ditch proceedings where the statutory time for appeal has expired.

Chap. 454 Provides for the utilization of documentary stamp meters by the SF 735 county treasurers. Empowers the Commissioner of Taxation to provide rules for the use of such machines.

Chap. 510 Allows any city, village, county, town, school district, or borough HF 1288 to pay any officer or employee mileage allowance, with the exception of sheriffs or deputies whose mileage allowances are otherwise set by law.

Chap. 574 Makes a minor change in the law relating to the assumption of the powers HF 1928 of villages by certain towns.

Chap. 640 Authorizes judicial restoration or approval of certain plats and out-HF 875 lines the procedure to be followed in securing such approval in the county district court.

Chap. 678 Allows the governing body of any town to plan and zone as provided SF 1441 by law, so long as it is not inconsistent with the standards prescribed by the board of county commissioners.

Chap. 697 Relates to probation officers; changes the amount to be paid to SF 130 counties in reimbursement of costs of certain probation services.

Chap. 744 Relates to the cooperative exercise of powers by the political sub-SF 918 divisions of the state. Provides that when the agreement calls for the use of a joint board the board shall be deemed to be representatives of the parties to the agreement and is deemed to comply with statutory or charter provisions of a board.

Chap. 761 Provides that the county coroner may be appointed by the board of HF 672 county commissioners rather than elected and establishes the procedure for making this office appointive rather than elective. Defines the duties of the coroner and allows the county board to provides for reasonable expenses incurred by the coroner.

Chap. 785 Authorizes the boards of county commissioners or the district court SF 991 to cause the construction of dams, structures, and improvements to control flood waters.

Chap. 838 Relates to salaries, fees, and budgets of county treasurers; bases SF 1154 compensation on county population, allows the county board to set the treasurer's salary and budget for his office, further provides a method of appeal by a county treasurer if dissatisfied with the action of the county board.

Chap. 840 Relates to salaries and fees of county sheriffs, scales salaries SF 1484 according to county populations.

Chap. 841 Relates to salaries, fees, and budgets of county auditors, scales SF 1485 salaries according to county population.

Chap. 842 Relates to salary, budget and fees of registers of deeds, scales SF 1469 salaries in accordance with county population.

Chap. 877 Relates to local improvements and special assessments in cities of HF 1820 the 2nd, 3rd and 4th class, villages, boroughs and certain towns.

Hennepin County --

Chap. 294 \*Relates to the office of County Budget and Purchasing Agent in the SF 1394 County of Hennepin, fixes his powers and duties, defines misconduct on the part of such agent and prescribes a penalty for misconduct.

Chap. 339 Extends the criminal jurisdiction of the Municipal Court of Hennepin HF 1098 County to include all of the Village of St. Anthony.

Chap. 352 Requires that any person holding the office of Court Commissioner in SF 1392 Hennepin County must be learned in the law.

Chap. 439 Establishes a fee of 50 cents per page for copies of any paper on SF 1606 file with the Hennepin County Probate Court.

Chap. 466 \*Authorizes the governing body of Hennepin County to fix the time and SF 1610 manner of paying salaries of officers and employees payable in whole or in part from county funds.

Chap. 494 Relates to the Municipal Court of Hennepin County; authorizes the SF 1603 County Board and the governing body of any town, city or village in Hennepin County to contract for the service of process and warrants.

Chap. 533 \*Creates a contingent fund in the sum of \$1,000.00 and provides for SF 1393 an annual appropriation of \$1,000.00 to such fund. Requires that four-fifths of the board approve any expenditures from the fund.

Chap. 539 Provides that all persons previously employed as clerks of a SF 1691 Municipal Court in Hennepin County but outside the City of Minneapolis and who subsequently were employed as deputy clerks of the Municipal Court of Hennepin County shall, for salary purposes, be considered to have commenced their employment on the date they became employed as clerks of a Municipal Court outside Minneapolis.

Chap. 633 \*Permits Hennepin County to participate in the Federal Food Stamp SF 1707 Program.

Chap. 725 Establishes the maximum mill levy for independent school districts HF 1635 in Hennepin County including all of School District No. 282.

Chap. 845 Relates to the Municipal Court of Hennepin County, provides for SF 1588 appointment of deputy clerks, and prescribes their duties and annual salary.

- 16 -

Chap. 846 Provides for compensation of court reporters at \$8,500 annually. SF 1589 Retroactive to January 1, 1965.

Chap. 847 Relates to the Municipal Court of Hennepin County; prescribes qual-SF 1590 ifications required of judges, length of terms, procedures for appointments in case of vacancies and elections. Sets salaries at \$17,000 annually.

Chap. 849 \*Establishes a Legislative Research Committee for Hennepin County SF 1593 and outlines the duties of the committee.

Chap. 850 \*Relates to the salaries and compensation of certain officers in SF 1596 Hennepin County; increases the annual salary of the County Attorney, County Auditor, County Treasurer, Clerk of District Court and the Court Commissioner.

Chap. 851 Relates to Municipal Court in Hennepin County, fixes maximum salaries SF 1601 for court employees and makes such salary changes retroactive to January 1, 1965.

Chap. 852 \*Relates to classification, salary, and tenure system for Hennepin SF 1625 County employees; appropriates funds for the payment of salaries of the employees of various county departments.

Chap. 854 Increases the maximum annual salary for law clerks of judges of the SF 1629 District Court of Hennepin County to \$6,600.00.

Chap. 855 \*Establishes and defines the duties of the Hennepin County Personnel SF 1708 Board and provides for the creation and maintenance of a personnel system on a merit basis. Further provides for the selection, promotion, tenure of office and compensation of Hennepin County employees. Effective date March 20, 1967.

Chap. 858 Relates to the Hennepin County District Court and provides that the SF 1846 Municipal Building Commission or the county or both shall find suitable quarters for court hearings in Bloomington, St. Louis Park, Wayzata and Crystal. Makes further provisions with regard to the court trials of certain matters.

Chap. 864 \*Increases the salaries of certain county employees and establishes SF 2047 the minimum increase of \$17.50 per month and the maximum increase of \$27.50 per month.

Chap. 898 \*Provides that when the Library Board of the City of Minneapolis acts SF 1628 as the Library Board of the Hennepin County library system there shall be six additional members on the board from the county outside the City of Minneapolis appointed by the Board of County Commissioners.

- 17 -

Ramsey County --

Chap. 157 \*Limits the compensation of the Ramsey County Board of Commissioners HF 1191 to that which is provided by statute.

Chap. 342 \*Provides that each warrant check issued by the Ramsey County Auditor HF 1190 or Treasurer shall state the purpose for which it was issued but need not show the fund from which it was drawn.

Chap. 372 \*Relates to payrolls in the County of Ramsey and directs the Ramsey HF 1126 County Civil Service Commission to establish payroll periods for appointed and elected officials to coincide with payroll periods of other county employees.

Chap. 468 Establishes certain fees to be collected by the Clerk of the Ramsey SF 1844 County District Court.

Chap. 469 Establishes a Probation and Investigation Department in connection SF 1849 with the courts of Ramsey County under the charge of a Chief Probation Officer appointed by the district judges. Provides for the appointment of personnel, the maintenance of records, and outlines the duties of the department.

Chap. 492 \*Relates to the County of Ramsey; provides for retirement of employees SF 1390 and benefits to such employees except officials elected by the people.

Chap. 577 \*Relates to the municipalities of Ramsey County and sets the maximum HF 2054 and minimum for membership fees in the Ramsey County League of Municipalities.

Chap. 628 \*Relates to the fees of the Abstract Clerk in Ramsey County, sets SF 1848 forth maximum allowable charges.

- Chap. 706 SF 2064 \*Relates to salaries of officials of Ramsey County and increases the salary of the County Attorney to \$17,000, the Auditor to \$15,000, the Sheriff to \$13,500, the Register of Deeds to \$12,500, the Clerk of District Court to \$11,500, the Treasurer to \$11,500 and the Coroner to \$6,300.
- Chap. 707 \*Relates to tax levies for the County of Ramsey. Repeals Laws 1961, SF 2065 Chapter 705 dealing with the levy for general revenue purposes.

Chap. 709 Relates to the Juvenile Court in Ramsey County; provides for the SF 2069 salary of court reporters at \$1,000 per annum maximum increment in addition to the annual salary provided by statute.

Chap. 737Provides for an additional judge in the Second Judicial DistrictSF 559(Ramsey County) thus increasing the number of judges to 10.

Chap. 784 \*Increases the maximum salary to be paid the Ramsey County Commis-HF 2119 sioner to \$6,500.00 annually. Act expires July 1, 1967.

- 18 -

Chap. 865 Authorizes the governing bodies of the City of St. Paul, the SF 2049 Village of Maplewood, and Ramsey County to enter into a cooperative agreement for the purpose of constructing storm water sewer facilities. Provides for the issuance of bonds to finance the project. Contingent upon the approval of the governing bodies of the aforementioned political subdivisions and in compliance with M.S. 645.021.

Chap. 878 Allows Ramsey County to condemn certain property for a county high-HF 2108 way.

St. Louis County --

Chap. 197 \*Sets the term of office at 5 years for lay members appointed by HF 828 the County Board to any board or commission in St. Louis County.

Chap. 282 \*Authorizes St. Louis County to pay over to the St. Louis County Fair HF 1486 Association \$10,000 for agricultural fair purposes.

Chap. 375 \*Provides for easements over certain tax forfeited lands. HF 1487

Chap. 538 \*Provides for the annual salaries of the County Auditor, Attorney, SF 1680 Superintendent of Schools, Sheriff, Treasurer, Clerk of District Court, Register of Deeds, and Coroner of the County of St. Louis.

Chap. 559 \*Increases certain fees to be charged and collected by the Clerk of HF 1071 District Court in St. Louis County.

Chap. 562 \*Authorizes the St. Louis County Welfare Board to provide all medical HF 1224 care, supplies or services authorized by the statutes defining aid and assistance programs.

Chap. 570 Fixes the salary of the Judge, Referee, and Clerk of the St. Louis HF 1535 County Probate Court.

Chap. 595 \*Allows the Board of County Commissioners to establish the salary HF 1666 of the County Surveyor.

Chap. 637 \*Relates to the Plat Commission of St. Louis County. HF 527

Chap. 661 \*Allows the Register of Deeds of St. Louis County to charge a fee of HF 2081 50 cents for the filing of chattel mortgages, bills of sale, or other documents.

Chap. 735 Authorizes the issuance of bonds in the aggregate principal amount HF 2080 of not more than \$1,500,000 by Independent School District No. 691 in St. Louis County. Contingent upon approval by Independent School District No. 691 and upon compliance with M.S. 645.021.

- 19 -

Chap. 820 \*Provides for the appointment of the Court Commissioner of St. SF 507 Louis County.

Chap. 843 \*Provides that salaries of the Board of Commissioners shall be SF 1514 set by the Board.

\* These acts shall become effective only after approval by the governing body of the county and upon compliance with M.S. 645.021.

#### CRIME AND CORRECTION

(See also Judiciary)

Chap. 52 Provides for the restoration of the civil rights of person committed HF 39 to the Youth Conservation Commission in certain cases.

Chap. 53 Makes certain changes in the Criminal Code by defining the term HF 41 "abduction" and prescribing penalties.

Chap. 76 Relates to police powers of the Commissioner of Conservation and game HF 630 wardens, adds certain laws, violation of which allows them to arrest without warrant.

Chap. 316 Relates to the district and probate juvenile courts; raises the SF 980 county population limits from 100,000 to 200,000 before the district court is to serve as the juvenile court in a county.

Chap. 339 Extends the criminal jurisdiction of the municipal court of Hennepin HF 1098 County to include all of the Village of St. Anthony.

Chap. 346 Provides that any person using an artificial light to locate wild HF 1307 animals while in possession of a bow or other implement capable of killing big game shall be guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

Chap. 395 Provides that articles, drugs, or medicines for the prevention of SF 1007 conception or disease may be sold or dispensed only by persons recognized as dealing primarily with health or welfare. Provides that persons convicted of violating the act shall be guilty of a gross misdeme anor.

Chap. 526 Relates to the Youth Conservation Commission; increases the number of SF 555 members to be appointed by the Governor to five and allows the chairman, with the approval of the Commissioner of Corrections, to appoint an officer of the Department of Corrections as deputy chairman to represent him as a voting member.

Chap. 528 Creates a parolee loan account in the state treasury to provide SF 575 emergency financial assistance to persons on parole, leave or probation from correctional institutions. Provides that the Commissioner of Corrections shall have the power to make such loans.

Chap. 560 Provides penalties for any person who, within any 48 hour period, HF 1175 purchases or has in his possession medical preparations containing more than 6 grains of codeine or any of its salts unless such preparation is prescribed by a licensed practioner.

Chap. 749 Relates to the election, term bond, and annual report of county SF 1221 attorneys. Provides for the appropriating of necessary funds to provide for stenographic assistance and allows the county board to establish a contingent fund up to \$3,000.00 for defraying expenses.

- 21 -

## CRIME AND CORRECTION (cont.)

- Chap. 759 Battered Child Act. Requires any person engaged in the practice HF 544 of healing, the superintendent of a hospital, a nurse or pharmacist to report immediately all cases of physical injury to children when such injury appears to have come about due to physical abuse or neglect. Provides that no liability shall attach to persons making such reports in good faith. Abrogates the physician-patient privilege in such cases and outlines the duties of the county welfare agencies.
- Chap. 869 Provides for adequate representation of persons who are financially HF 640 unable to obtain counsel and who are charged with the commission of certain crimes. Creates a system of state and district public defenders and provides for the financing of the system.

#### EDUCATION

Elementary, Secondary and General Education --

Chap. 33 Relates to elections in common and independent school districts SF 409 providing for resolving a tie by lot.

Chap. 44 Provides that certain sections of the Corrupt Practices Act shall HF 343 apply to school elections.

Chap. 69 Relates to insufficient funds of school districts to pay valid orders, SF 438 and allows entering of agreements with banks to pay the lawful current obligation of such district.

Chap. 84 Legalizes resolutions of independent school districts requesting HF 604 elections on assumption of debts.

Chap. 126 Provides for school districts investing funds in certificates of HF 566 deposit of any state or national bank.

Chap. 165 Requires school districts and unorganized territories to provide legal HF 272 counsel for teachers in tort actions.

Chap. 196 Allows the certification of teachers receiving diplomas from colleges HF 804 and universities outside of Minnesota, at the discretion of the state board.

Chap. 225 Amends the law relating to the petition seeking the detachment and HF 736 annexation of lands of school districts by providing that the petition must show that the size of any district will not be under four sections unless the district is not operating a school.

Chap. 231 Provides for emergency disbursements of imprest cash funds to the HF 853 Department of Education in the sum of \$100.00.

Chap. 241 Defines and provides for the responsibility for the education of SF 407 non-resident handicapped children.

Chap. 280 Provides for inclusion of all territory of non-operating districts HF 1219 within school districts maintaining elementary or secondary schools.

Chap. 374 Relates to school districts, changes the limitation on tax levies. HF 1236

Chap. 386 Authorizes the issuance of emergency tax anticipation certificates HF 1005 of indebtedness due to taconite or semi-taconite plant construction in school districts. Provides for a tax levy by school districts where enrollment increases by 10% the average pupil units of the school enrollment due to the construction of such plants.

Chap. 434 Relates to the filling of vacancies on boards of independent school SF 1094 districts.

## EDUCATION (cont.)

- Chap. 496 Relates to schools for training practical nurses, sets down certain HF 296 requirements for such schools and prescribes penalties for violations.
- Chap. 503 Prescribes the time for filing applications by candidates in school HF 647 district elections. Application to be filed not more than 45 nor less than 21 days before the election.
- Chap. 525 Relates to the consolidation of school districts and provides that SF 437 in counties where the Commissioner of Education is required to render the services of the county school office, the county auditor shall be required to perform certain procedures regarding the consolidation of school districts.
- Chap. 537 Provides for a penalty to be paid by the county auditors and the SF 1493 county treasurers in the event that such officials fail to pay state aid to schools promptly.
- Chap. 597 Relates to area vocational technical schools and allows the attend-SF 383 ance of non resident persons who are high school dropouts.
- Chap. 718 Allows the State Board to adopt rules for the purpose of certifying HF 775 persons who may bear the title of school business officers.
- Chap. 719 Provides for a method of computing additional school aids to districts HF 1039 with decreasing auditor's assessed valuation and restricts the increase in valuation in certain districts having substantially increased valuation.
- Chap. 739 Allows common schoool districts situated along the Minnesota Wis-SF 685 consin state line for a period of 25 years to continue to operate as common school districts after July 1, 1965.
- Chap. 748 Extends immunity from tort liability for school districts, certain SF 1217 towns and certain other public corporations until January 1, 1970.
- Chap. 777 Reappropriates the unexpended balances of moneys appropriated in HF 1625 the 1959 extra session for educational television.
- Chap. 805 Relates to education, transportation aid and to the county levy to SF 382 offset costs for the transportation of pupils.
- Chap. 817 Relates to school aids, appropriates certain sums for use in com-HF 1595 puting such aid under the foundation aid program.
- Chap. 827 Relates to school aids; appropriates certain sums for use in SF 1453 computing such aid under the foundation aid program.

- 24 -

#### EDUCATION (cont.)

Chap. 870 Relates to aid given to handicapped children and increases the HF 664 maximum amount to be paid by the state to the school district for professional personnel from \$3,600.00 to \$4,000.00 for the school year. Appropriates \$404,000.00 from the Income Tax School Fund for the year 1965-1966, and \$465,000.00 for the year 1966-1967 for the purposes of this act.

Chap. 875 Revises the method of computing the maximum effort debt service levy, HF 1686 the debt service loan limitation and the net debt limitation for school districts; authorizes the issuance and sale of school loan bonds of the state and appropriates the proceeds realized from such sale for the making of debt service loans and capital loans to school districts; authorizes capital loans, bond issues and temporary borrowing for restoration of schools destroyed or damaged by tornado, flood or other disaster.

Chap. 891 Restricts the use of sales ratio studies prepared by the E.A.R.C. by SF 1653 providing that such studies prepared by the Commissioner of Taxation for the E.A.R.C. for the use in determining school aids shall not be admissable as evidence in any proceeding, except actions for review of the determination of the school aids payable under M.S. 124.21.

Higher Education --

Chap. 106 Provides for certain changes in the law relating to scholarships for HF 172 student nurses by repealing the requirement that the scholarships are to be awarded only to student nurses who are provided with an educational experience in a rural or a state mental hospital.

Chap. 110 Provides that the State Junior College Board may purchase retirement HF 52 annuities for employees and provides for the deposit of funds in an annuity account established in the state treasury.

Chap. 242 Allows the State College Board to enter into reciprocal agreements SF 618 with institutions of higher learning in contiguous states so as to enable students in specialized areas to enter such out of state institutions without having to pay non-resident tuition fees. Limits the agreement to an aggregate of 2,000 credit hours per academic year.

Chap. 317 Authorizes the State College Board to issue additional revenue bonds SF 993 in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$9,400,000.00 and to use the proceeds to redeem and refund the outstanding College Buildings Revenue Bond, Series A and B.

Chap. 331 Relates to state colleges and confirms the designation of state SF 994 colleges; prescribes the terms and conditions for the issuance of refunding revenue bonds by the State College Board.

Chap. 332 Authorizes the State College Board to issue revenue bonds in the SF 995 aggregate principal amount of up to 11 million dollars and to use the proceeds for the acquisition, construction, completion, remodeling and equipping of structures for dormitory, residence hall, student union and food service purposes.

#### EDUCATION (cont.)

- Chap. 476 Provides for the payment of aids and tuition charges for students SF 283 attending a model or laboratory school at a state college or the University of Minnesota.
- Chap. 521 Appropriates \$10,890.83 to the State College Board to match federal SF 949 grants for loans to college students.
- Chap. 679 Relates to the State College Board, confers certain powers on said SF 1452 board and certain governmental subdivisions of the state with reference to the Federal Economic Opportunity Act.
- Chap. 728 Authorizes the acquisition of sites for state junior colleges by the HF 1742 political subdivisions designated by the State Junior College Board and the conveyance of the land by the subdivision to the State Junior College Board.

Chap. 770 Relates to the powers of the State Junior College Board and the HF 1264 transfer of certain of its employees into the classified Civil Service.

- 26 -

#### ELECTION LAWS

- Chap. 3 Changes the primary election date from the second to the first Tuesday SF 36 after the second Monday in September preceding any general election.
- Chap. 4 Makes certain changes in sections of the law governing voting by mail. SF 38 Affects certain voters including members of the armed forces.

Chap. 12 Provides for additional election judges for state, general and pri-SF 41 mary elections in precincts of unorganized territory having over 300 voters at the last election. Provides that additional judges need not be appointed in precincts where voting machines are used.

Chap. 21 Provides for the method of delivery of election supplies by the SF 40 clerk of each city, town or village in the state and authorizes the county auditor of any county to employ the method of furnishing election supplies used in unorganized territory if he deems it more convenient.

Chap. 81 Relates to remedies for obvious errors in election contests; sets SF 37 out methods of obtaining correction of such errors by the judiciary and State Canvassing Board, describes where election contests are to be instituted and how contestee shall answer such notice.

Chap. 128 Provides for the means to allow voting by new residents in presi-HF 949 dential elections.

Chap. 170 Appropriates certain moneys to the Minnesota Voting Machine Commission HF 423 for expenses incurred by the commission in the discharge of its duties.

Chap. 210 Prescribes certain changes in the form of official election ballots HF 1114 to be used in all elections for judicial offices.

Chap. 247 Makes minor changes in the law relating to the delivery of absentee SF 1192 ballots to election judges.

Chap. 260 Relates to elections, provides for appointment of challengers of HF 1141 voters by candidates.

Chap. 325 Relates to elections and provides that under no circumstances are the HF 908 ballot boxes to be opened and the ballots counted before the closing of the polls.

Chap. 340 Outlines the duties of the clerks of certain cities, villages, HF 1143 boroughs, and towns relative to elections.

Chap. 343 Requires election judges to report the number of blank and defective HF 1221 ballots.

Chap. 380 Provides that a voter needing assistance in marking or reading the SF 619 ballot may call to his aid two judges of different party affiliation.

- Chap. 486 Relates to elections, provides for places for registration of voters
   SF 1230 in cities of the first and second class and outlines the duties of the city council in establishing such voter registration facilities.
- Chap. 503 Prescribes the time for filing applications by candidates in school HF 647 district elections. Application to be filed not more than 45 nor less than 21 days before the election.
- Chap. 515 Relates to elections; requires the affidavit of candidacy to be filed HF 1727 not more than 70 or less than 56 days before the election in question.
- Chap. 567 Relates to elections and the Corrupt Practices Act. Provides that HF 1374 no person or candidate shall knowingly make a false claim stating that the candidate has the support or endorsement of any political party when that candidate does not have such endorsement.
- Chap. 619 Relates to elections, authorizes the use of electronic voting systems HF 1728 by cities, villages, and towns in elections, defines certain terms related thereto, and the methods of using electronic voting systems.

# Chap. 798 Relates to election laws; provides for who may participate and vote HF 1441 at a precinct caucus.

#### GENERAL LEGISLATION

- Chap. 47 Repeals law allowing bonuses to Veterans of World War I and their HF 38 dependents.
- Chap. 50 Authorizes the State Fire Marshall and his assistants to post no HF 44 smoking signs and provides that it shall be unlawful to carry a lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe or other lighted smoking equipment in an area so posted.
- Chap. 83 Relates to construction of statutes, provides that when an act
   SF 490 incorporates another law by reference, it also adopts any subsequent amendments of such other law.

Chap. 151 Permits grand lodges of fraternal organizations created by a special HF 678 act of the legislature to change the place of establishment when authorized by a majority of the governing body and a majority of the members of the grand lodge.

Chap. 288 Relates to aeronautics, changes the period of issuance of certain SF 928 registration certificates.

Chap. 324 Provides that persons 11 years of age may take a firearms safety SF 447 training course and receive a certificate upon becoming age 12. Further provides that persons under 14 and over 12 years of age must be accompanied by a parent or guardian while hunting.

Chap. 385 Regulates the sale or exchange of fire extinguishers. HF 869

Chap. 405 Designates the last Friday in April as Arbor Day and provides for SF 1377 its observance in the public schools of the state.

Chap. 429 Relates to aeronautics, provides for certain exemptions from regis-HF 2091 tration and taxation requirements.

Chap. 437 Relates to apiaries, provides for application for the renewal of SF 1241 licenses, and establishes certain requirements for beekeepers entering Minnesota from other states.

Chap. 473 Provides for sale of certain tax forfeited land lying within 1500 HF 843 feet of the established harbor line located in harbors upon the Great Lakes - St. Lawrence Seaway, under certain conditions.

Chap. 474 Relates to the qualifications of newspapers as mediums of official HF 1087 and legal publications.

Chap. 531 Prohibits discrimination in outdoor advertising.

SF 1170

Chap. 552 Relates to the tax effect of disclaimers of property by persons HF 380 succeeding in interest to such property by will, interstacy, deed, trust or otherwise.

- Chap. 558 Relates to the content of petitions for the adoption of children HF 1069 and omits the requirement that the child's parents' names and the child's name be included in agency placements.
- Chap. 564 Limits the recovery of damages available from legal actions arising HF 1259 from the defective and unsafe condition of improvements to real property.
- Chap. 579 Provides for the payment of certain claims against the state. SF 251
- Chap. 584 Relates to discrimination and provides that the employment of one SF 1330 person rather than another standing by itself shall not be evidence of an unfair discriminatory practice.
- Chap. 585 Provides that the exclusion of persons from public accommodations SF 1269 because of their race, color, national origin or religion constitutes an unfair discriminatory practice.
- Chap. 586 Relates to discriminatory practices; amends the procedure for inquiry SF 1462 into a complaint of an unfair discriminatory practice. Repeals that section of the law relating to a board of review and makes provisions for review by the State Commission against Discrimination.
- Chap. 599 Authorizes the Commissioner of Administration to sell or distribute SF 676 copies of laws and resolutions passed by the Legislature. Establishes the charges to be made.
- Chap. 602 Relates to real property, The Apartment Ownership Act. Makes changes SF 1198 in the sections dealing with definitions, obtaining insurance, liens against the property, and disposition of property where it is damaged by fire or other disaster.
- Chap. 658 Relates to claims due the state; provides that if the claim is to be HF 1850 paid by a county and is for services rendered by the University of Minnesota hospitals, the claim shall be paid within 60 days of the date the bill is presented to the county board.
- Chap. 660 Makes language changes in the law relating to the establishment of HF 2079 local civil defense agencies; requires the creation of such agencies.
- Chap. 668 Relates to the licensing of trailer coach parks. Defines the terms SF 499 "primary annual license" and "annual license". Provides for the display of a license and establishes fees for such licenses and penalties.
- Chap. 674 Relates to motor vehicle, agricultural or construction machinery SF 1025 junk yards, provides regulations for the operation thereof, and penalties for violations.

- 30 -

Chap. 681 Provides for correction of errors resulting from enactment of con-SF 2030 flicting and inconsistent provisions of law by amending certain statutes.

Chap. 682 Relates to future estates in real property and the accumulation HF 376 and disposition of rents and profits of real property.

Chap. 717 Provides that the State of Minnesota shall assume a part of the cost HF 540 of partition fences to be constructed on land adjoining the Memorial Hardwood State Forest. Allows the appropriation of funds for this purpose.

Chap. 720 Relates to the discharge of a representative of a minor in probate HF 1258 proceedings; provides that the probate court has complete jurisdiction over such representative and may require him to account at any time.

Chap. 721 Prohibits the sale and limits the use of any radio equipment capable HF 1399 of receiving any radio signal, message or information from any police emergency frequency. Provides for penalties for violation of this act and states that the provisions don't apply to wholesale dealers.

Chap. 724 Relates to credit unions and provides that no full time manager of HF 1610 a credit union shall be a director of such credit union operating under M.S. 52.08.

Chap. 732 Relates to the organization and scope of business trusts, allows HF 1961 domestic corporations, national banks and certain foreign corporations to organize and to make a declaration of trust. Provides for changes in the filing procedure for the declaration of trust and penalties for violating the terms of this act.

Chap. 738 Limits the accessibility of birth information disclosing illegiti-SF 664 macy.

Chap. 741 Makes certain changes in the law pertaining to employment security SF 800 by redefining various terms.

Chap. 742 Increases the benefit to be received under the workmen's compensa-SF 801 tion law for burial expense to a maximum of \$750.00 to be paid by the employer.

Chap. 748 Extends immunity from tort liability for school districts, certain SF 1217 towns and certain other public corporations until January 1, 1970.

Chap. 749 Relates to the election, term bond, and annual report of county SF 1221 attorneys. Provides for the appropriating of necessary funds to provide for assistance and allows the county board to establish a contingent fund of up to \$3,000.00 for defraying expenses.

- Chap. 751 Provides for an actuarial survey to be made of public pension and SF 1323 retirement funds for policemen and firemen. Stipulates what the survey shall consist of.
- Chap. 757 Appropriates funds for the payment of certain enumerated claims SF 2032 against the state.
- Chap. 764 Provides for a fine of up to \$10.00 to be levied against anyone who HF 898 fails to adhere to the standards established for dog houses.
- Chap. 772 Abolishes dower and curtesy and statutory interest in all lands HF 1443 conveyed prior to January 1, 1950, and limits the time for the commencement of actions for the recovery of estates in dower or by the curtsey.
- Chap. 773 Relates to affidavits as evidence, provides for the recording of HF 1444 such affidavits in the office of the register of deeds.
- Chap. 778 Relates to assignment of wages, and provides that authorized payroll HF 1712 deductions are extended to include the Minnesota Benefit Association.
- Chap. 779 Provides for the preservation of historic sites and structures of HF 1713 state and national significance and establishes the state's policy as to such sites.
- Chap. 807 Creates a Minnesota Wisconsin Boundary Area Commission and provides HF 1467 for the joinder of this state in a compact with Wisconsin for the purpose of present and future protection, use and development of boundary lands and waters between the two states. Appropriates \$25,000 for the above purposes.
- Chap. 819 Relates to newspapers, establishes fees for publication of legal SF 467 notices.
- Chap. 837 Increases wrongful death limit to \$35,000 from \$25,000. SF 1066
- Chap. 859 Relates to the solicitation of charitable funds and provides that SF 1921 a charitable organization which does not employ a professional fund raiser and which does not plan to solicit gross contributions in excess of \$25,000 annually (was \$5,000) may, but need not, file registration statements with the Secretary of State.
- Chap. 862 Establishes controls and regulations for the erection of advertis-SF 1986 ing devices along the trunk highways of the state. Creates a Scenic Area Board and outlines its duties.
- Chap. 885 Legalizes foreclosure sales heretofore made and the records of HF 1447 mortgage foreclosure proceedings, and limits the time within which actions may be brought or defenses interposed questioning the validity of foreclosure proceedings.

- 32 -

Chap. 895 Regional Sanitary Sewer District Law. Relates to the organization, HF 2130 responsibilities and powers of regional sanitary sewer districts, details the composition, powers and duties of such districts.

Chap. 896 Provides for retirement allowances for members of the Legislature and HF 1088 survivor benefits for their widows and dependent children. Defines those who qualify and provides the method of applying for such benefits.

Chap. 903 Provides that the Commissioner of Administration shall establish a HF 1051 state teletypewriter communication network; creates a State Communications Advisory Board; authorizes the participation in such network by the counties and agencies of the state.

### HEALTH AND WELFARE

auth and son

Chap. 72 SF 244	Deals with counties of 30,000 or less and authorizes them to appropriate funds for municipally owned and operated nursing homes.
Chap. 115 SF 314	Provides that certain relatives as defined by the act, may bring children into the state for adoption without having first obtained the permission of the Commissioner of Public Welfare.
Chap. 116 SF 341	Repeals the law relating to the reimbursement of cost of care and support of children under state guardianship or supervision from the revolving fund.
Chap. 189 SF 23	Provides for destruction of swine affected with hog cholera and payment of indemnities by the state to the owner.
Chap. 204 HF 599	Relates to the practice of veterinary medicine, sets out definitions and prescribes requirements for members of state veterinary board; pertains to applications for licenses, registration, reinstatement of expired licenses, and revocation and suspension of licenses. Also defines what the practice of veterinary medicine shall include.
Chap. 205 SF 500	Requires tests of all newborn infants for inborn metabolic errors causing mental retardation.
Chap. 265 HF 847	Relates to voluntary nonprofit medical service corporations and allows them to provide for the services of podiatrists and osteopaths in addition to dentists and doctors of medicine.
Chap. 274 SF 1281	Amends the law relating to budget estimates of county welfare boards by providing that the board of county commissioners and the council

SF 1281 by providing that the board of county commissioners and the council of a city of the first class may appoint a welfare budget advisory committee. Such committee shall report its recommendations not later than September 1 of each year.

Chap. 292 Relates to the blind, changes the period of financial assistance SF 313 from 12 to 36 months.

Chap. 321 Provides that blind persons who are entitled to vocational training SF 505 through the Department of Welfare shall have the right to choose their course of training from available programs.

Chap. 351 Relates to the care and custody of moneys belonging to patients in SF 589 county nursing homes.

Chap. 379 Relates to persons desiring voluntary mental treatment at certain SF 530 federal facilities; provides for their detention for treatment in the same manner as though they had been admitted to a state hospital for such purposes.

Chap. 389 Relates to state grants-in-aid to assist local communities in SF 241 operating community mental health programs. Makes certain changes in the limitations on the amount of such grant.

- 34 -

### HEALTH AND WELFARE (cont.)

Chap. 395 Provides that articles, drugs or medicines for the prevention of SF 1007 conception or disease may be sold or dispensed only by persons recognized as dealing primarily with health or welfare. Provides that persons convicted of violating the act shall be guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

Chap. 472 Increases the amounts payable to the owner of certain diseased HF 663 animals that are destroyed.

Chap. 477 Relates to eligibility for aid to the disabled, provides that no SF 340 such aid shall be given if the person seeking such aid has assets over a certain amount.

Chap. 478 Relates to aid to the disabled, strikes the \$70 limit as the maximum SF 424 amount of aid for one month.

Chap. 479 Relates to aid to the disabled, removes the age limit of 65 years SF 425 and changes the definition of a disabled person.

Chap. 480 Relates to activity centers for the mentally retarded; provides for SF 473 state grants in aid to assist local communities and nonprofit corporations in establishing and operating such centers. Also authorizes local tax levies and grants in aid for such activity centers.

Chap. 558 Relates to the content of petitions for the adoption of children and HF 1069 omits the requirement that the child's parents' names and the child's name be included in agency placements.

Chap. 560 Provides penalties for any person who, within any 48 hour period, HF 1175 purchases or has in his possession medical preparations containing more than 6 grains of codeine or any of its salts unless such preparation is prescribed by a licensed practioner.

Chap. 582 Amends the manner and amount of payment of old age assistance and SF 156 changes the maximum grant.

Chap. 626 Relates to state participation in federally aided mental retardation SF 1274 facilities and community mental health construction.

Chap. 692 Relates to services for the blind and provides for the training of HF 1531 workers with the blind.

Chap. 740 Relates to medical assistance for the aged, defines the county of SF 702 financial responsibility, makes certain changes in the law pertaining to eligibility and verification for such aid.

Chap. 750 Excludes certain payments made under the Federal Economic Opportunity SF 1249 Act from the computation of need with respect to any program for old age assistance, medical aid for the aged, aid to families with dependent children, aid to the blind, or aid to the disabled, received pursuant to Minnesota Statutes.

- 35 -

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESOTA

### HEALTH AND WELFARE (cont.)

Chap. 752 SF 1455	Provides for the issuance and use of distinctive flags or distress signals by physically handicapped drivers of motor vehicles.
Chap. 755 SF 1974	Establishes a state wide system of medical assistance with free choice of vendor to provide medical care for certain groups whose resources are insufficient to meet the costs of necessary medical care. Defines those eligible for such medical benefits and provides for the division of cost between the county, state and federal govern- ments. Act expires July 1, 1967.

Chap. 763 Allows blind persons to take dog guides into public places and for-HF 848 bids extra charges to be made for a dog guide.

Relates to adoptions; authorizes the court to enter orders for the Chap. 786 protection of the child if the court determines that the best interests SF 1140 of the child require such an order.

Relates to payment of aid to the disabled, old age assistance, aid to Chap. 799 the blind, aid to dependent children, and medical assistance for HF 1484 patients in public medical institutions.

Relates to rehabilitation services for the severly disabled through Chap. 835 long term sheltered workshops. Appropriates \$15,000 for this purpose SF 925 and outlines the procedure to be followed by applicants for such aid.

Provides for special courtesys in parking and parking privileges to Chap. 844 physically handicapped persons, also provides for distinguishing SF 1522 certificates for a handicapped person's car.

#### HIGHWAYS

General --

Chap. 14 Relates to relocation and reimbursement of utilities located on SF 174 the interstate system; allows, under certain circumstances, payment by the commissioner directly to the contractor without requiring the utility to first make payment and request reimbursement.

Chap. 23 Extends until July 1, 1967 the authority of the Commissioner of High-SF 170 ways to employ registered professional engineers, engineering firms and land surveyors to act as consultants.

Chap. 139 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to enter into agreements for SF 338 relocation services in cities of the first class.

Chap. 207 Provides for the addition of a new trunk highway route to extend HF 126 from the village of Baudette to the boundary line between Minnesota and Canada.

Chap. 222 Authorizes non-salaried deputy registrars to retain certain fees HF 316 (\$.50) for expenses incurred in examining applicants for chauffeur's licenses.

Chap. 227 Relates to the county state-aid street system and provides that any HF 791 county issuing and selling bonds under the authority of M.S. 162.181 shall certify annually the amount required to pay the principal and interest on the obligation and the Commissioner of Highways shall direct the State Auditor to pay the certified amount to the county.

Chap. 228 Relates to the municipal state-aid system and provides the method to HF 792 be followed by the municipality in applying for moneys from the State Auditor for the payment of principal and interest due on municipal bonds.

Chap. 237 Authorizes the county boards of counties situated adjacent to the HF 1040 Great River Road to provide financial assistance to the Mississippi River Parkway Commission, the Commissioner of Highways, or the Division of State Parks in the construction, development and promotion of the Great River Road.

Chap. 239 Relates to certain roads included in the county state-aid system and SF 236 provides for access to the headquarters or the principal parking lot of state parks.

Chap. 245 Makes minor changes in the law relating to highway railroad grade SF 1101 crossings and the duties and functions of the Railroad and Warehouse Commission with regard to the establishment and cost of safety devices at such crossings.

Chap. 256 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to enter into agreements with HF 125 an adjoining nation or province for the acquisition, construction and maintenance of free or toll bridges over international boundary waters.

### HIGHWAYS (cont.)

- Chap. 301 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to sell surplus earth HF 793 materials from roadway excavations to political subdivisions and public agencies of the state.
- Chap. 368 Provides for certain specifications in regard to minimum wages in HF 154 highway contracts where the Commissioner of Highways acts as agent for political subdivisions.
- Chap. 445 Designates certain highways as the Hiawatha Pioneer Trail and HF 152 provides for the marking of such trail.
- Chap. 505 Relates to the powers of the Commissioner of Highways; authorizes HF 787 agreements with counties for the relocation or reestablishment of section, quarter section and meander corners originally established by the United States.
- Chap. 556 Designates trunk highway routes 390, 394 and 395 as the Blue Star HF 892 Memorial Highway. Authorizes the placement of markers along such route.
- Chap. 672 Provides that five percent of the net Highway User Tax Distribution SF 1006 Fund be set aside and apportioned to the Trunk Highway Fund, the County State-Aid Highway Fund and the Municipal State-Aid Street Fund; appropriates moneys in connection therewith, and allocates federal aid money made available by the United States for expenditure on the federal and secondary system of highways in Minnesota.
- Chap. 729 Authorizes the Governor, upon the recommendation of the Commissioner HF 1876 of Highways, to convey certain real estate to the City of St. Paul
- Chap. 730 Authorizes the Governor, upon the recommendation of the Commissioner HF 1877 of Highways, to convey certain described land to the City of St. Paul.
- Chap. 795 Provides that no driver's license shall be issued after January 1, HF 224 1967 to any person under 18 unless he has completed a driver's training course either in this state or elsewhere. Provides that anyone between the ages of 15 and 18 may enroll in a driver education course offered by public schools.
- Chap. 828 Relates to the erection and maintenance of advertising devices on SF 1985 lands along and adjacent to the interstate system of highways. Creates the Scenic Area Board and outlines the board's authority. Provides penalties for violation of the act by those constructing advertising devices and appropriates funds to carry out the terms of the Act.
- Chap. 836 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to acquire by eminent domain SF 1005 proceedings any tax forfeited lands containing road building materials.

- 38 -

### HIGHWAYS (cont.)

Chap. 862 Establishes controls and regulations for the erection of adver-SF 1986 tising devices along the trunk highway of the state. Creates a Scenic Area Board and outlines its duties.

Chap. 892 Relates to the manner of issuance and sale of trunk highway bonds SF 1729 as provided by Article IX, Section 6, and Article XVI, Section 12 of the Minnesota Constitution. Provides for the means to be followed in expending the moneys realized and the provision of funds for the payment of the bonds.

Motor Vehicle and Traffic Regulations --

Chap. 31 Relates to traffic regulations. Authorizes right turns when facing HF 222 a steadyred stop signal if an official sign has been erected permitting such a turn.

Chap. 36 Relates to motor vehicle drivers' licenses, authorizes agents HF 72 appointed by clerks of court to collect and retain certain fees.

Chap. 78 Deals with parental approval of license applications by minors, HF 166 allows either parent to make such approval if both live with the minor applicant, or the parent who has custody of said minor.

Chap. 94 Relates to taxation of motor vehicle registration after revocation SF 235 of such registration, and sets forth a means for computing such tax.

Chap. 95 Allows new car buyers to use the dealer's plates until receipt of SF 240 buyers number plates.

Chap. 133 Makes corrections in the law relating to uniform system of traffic SF 176 control devices.

Chap. 147 Relates to registration and taxation of motor vehicles, allows HF 315 delayed registration by motor vehicle dealers under certain conditions.

Chap. 148 Allows any car owner whose vehicle is destroyed or permanently HF 345 removed from the state or sold to the federal government, the state or a political subdivision, to be entitled to a refund of the unused portion of the tax to be paid on the vehicle.

Chap. 149 Relates to motor vehicle licensing, changes the length of the HF 346 periods of issuance for a certain number of plates.

Chap. 150 Relates to dealer number plates, allows issuance of more than one HF 445 pair at \$10 per pair. Also sets forth circumstances under which vehicles using such plates can be used for private business purposes.

Chap. 155 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to act as an agent for SF 178 municipalities in making improvements outside the limits of a state construction project under certain conditions.

# HIGHWAYS (cont.)

Chap. 158 Relates to the manufacturing of motor vehicle license number HF 43 plates and the financing thereof.

Chap. 168 Permits the use of certain tires with metal protrusions. HF 90

Chap. 169 Exempts qualified student trainees from chauffeur license require-HF 209 ments.

Chap. 178 Amends certain provisions of the law relating to ownership of auto-SF 516 mobiles and trucks by persons under 18 years of age, allows ownership under certain conditions.

Chap. 201 Sets out conditions under which a chauffeur's license is required HF 281 for operating a motor vehicle.

Chap. 258 Regulates the renting, leasing, or furnishing of motor bicycles for HF 297 pay or hire; requires the licensing of such business with the Secretary of State, and limits the use and operation of motor bicycles.

Chap. 364 Defines the term"motor scooter" for registration and taxation pur-SF 423 poses.

Chap. 401 Establishes length limits of 60 feet for certain vehicles used to SF 1224 transport flax fiber or straw after the procurement of a permit from the Commissioner of Highways.

Chap. 423 Directs that any driver intending to turn left within an inter-HF 1616 section or into an alley or driveway shall yield to any vehicle approaching from the opposite direction which is within the intersection or so close thereto as to constitute an immediate hazard.

Chap. 635 Relates to highway traffic regulations, the equipment on vehicles, HF 393 and the adoption of the interstate vehicle equipment safety compact.

Chap. 674 Relates to motor vehicle, agricultural or construction machinery SF 1025 junk yards, provides regulations for the operation thereof, and penalties for violations.

Chap. 711 Relates to traffic safety, provides for the establishment of driver HF 244 improvement clinics, prescribes the duties of the Commissioner of Highways and the Commissioner of Education in relation thereto, and appropriates \$10,000 per year.

Chap. 815 Provides that automobile accident reports shall be made available HF 627 to representatives of insurance companies insuring automobiles involved in an accident.

- 40 -

#### JUDICIARY

Chap. 15 Provides that a purchaser or mortgagee receiving a deed or mortgage SF 195 executed pursuant to a license given to any executor, administrator or guardian may register his title to land and shall receive a certificate from the examiner of titles provided his documents are legally sufficient.

Chap. 117 Increases the fee to be charged by court commissioners for examining SF 390 an alleged insane or inebriate person for committment from \$10.00 to \$25.00.

Chap. 210 Prescribes certain changes in the form of official election ballots HF 1114 to be used in all elections for judicial offices.

Chap. 316 Relates to the district and probate juvenile courts; raises the county SF 980 population limits from 100,000 to 200,000 before the district court is to serve as the juvenile court.

Chap. 563 Defines and establishes ground and time limits for amending, modify-HF 1257 ing or vacating orders and decrees of a probate court.

Chap. 607 Relates to the civil appeal code, appealable judgments and orders to SF 1742 the Supreme Court.

Chap. 608 Relates to costs and disbursements in the Supreme Court. SF 1750

Chap. 625 Relates to probate judges, provides for their retirement under SF 1103 certain conditions.

Chap. 640 Authorizes judicial restoration or approval of certain plats and HF 875 outlines the procedure to be followed in securing such approval in the county district court.

Chap. 683 Relates to service of summons upon prospective grand jurors. HF 994

Chap. 686 Relates to change of venue in civil actions. HF 342

Chap. 703 Authorizes the collection of a \$10.00 filing fee in adoption pro-SF 1472 ceedings in juvenile courts. Effective July 1, 1965.

Chap. 726 Relates to the jurisdiction of justices of the peace; provides that HF 1639 the statutory jurisdiction described in M.S. 633.01 does not apply to the territory within the State Fair Grounds.

Chap. 737 Provides for an additional judge in the Second Judicial District SF 559 (Ramsey County), increasing the number of judges to 10.

- 41 -

# JUDICIARY (cont.)

- Chap. 762 Makes certain changes in the law providing for retirement and HF 690 compensation allowance for district court judges and the compensation and allowances for widows of district and supreme court judges.
- Chap. 767 Provides that no representative of a deceased representative's HF 1096 estate shall administer the estate of the first decedent, except that if it is fully administered he may be authorized by the court to distribute and wind up the estate.
- Chap. 822 Relates to courts, fees to be charged and collected in judicial pro-SF 1021 ceedings, and the compensation of clerks of the district court.
- Chap. 853 Increases the annual salary of assignment clerks and assistant SF 1626 assignment clerks to a maximum of \$8,850.00 and \$7,000.00 respectively in the fourth judicial district.
- Chap. 858 Relates to the Hennepin County District Court and provides that the SF 1846 Municipal Building Commission or the county or both shall find suitable quarters for court hearings in Bloomington, St. Louis Park, Wayzata and Crystal. Makes further provisions with regard to the court trials of certain matters.
- Chap. 869 Provides for adequate representation of persons who are financially HF 640 unable to obtain counsel and who are charged with the commission of certain crimes. Creates a system of state and district public defenders and provides for the financing of the system.

Chap. 883 Relates to probate court; authorizes the destruction or reproduc-HF 760 tion of certain records.

#### MUNICIPALITIES

Chap. 96 Authorizes the renewal of the period of corporate existence of SF 255 certain cemetary corporations whose period of duration has expired.

Chap. 175 Relates to letting of contracts by villages and requirements for SF 159 advertising for bids.

Chap. 186 Relates to compensation of village and township assessors. Provides SF 869 that the amount is to be determined by the town board except where special laws set the salary, but not more than \$15 per day for first two years and not more than \$20 per day in each year of service thereafter shall be paid.

Chap. 218 Amends the law relating to the petition for village elections to HF 54 determine if intoxicating liquor may be sold in such village. Requires that such petitions contain the number of names equivalent to at least 30% of the persons voting at the last election or 200 voters, whichever is less.

Chap. 221 Prohibits incorporating villages from issuing liquor licenses until HF 237 two years after such incorporation.

Chap. 228 Relates to the municipal state-aid system and provides the method to HF 792 be followed by the municipality in applying for moneys from the State Auditor for the payment of principal and interest due on municipal bonds.

Chap. 254 Relates to vacancies in the office of county assessor or county SF 867 supervisor of assessments and town, village and city assessors, and the appointment and terms of town, village and city assessors.

Chap. 262 Provides that the mayor and aldermen of fourth class cities may be HF 1360 paid a \$10.00 per diem for each special meeting of the common council unless their meeting attendance is otherwise compensated for by statute. Such per diem payments may not exceed \$150.00 per year.

Chap. 266 Authorizes third and fourth class cities to acquire real and personal SF 744 property by installment purchase contracts.

Chap. 296 Relates to the procuring of group insurance protection for officers, HF 610 employees, retired officers and employees of governmental subdivisions and the dependents of the aforementioned persons.

Chap. 300 Relates to public indebtedness, deposits of county funds, and the HF 641 investment of city, village, borough, county, town, and school district sinking funds.

Chap. 309 Any city, village, town, or school district in which the assessed HF 1380 valuation consists in part of iron ore or lands containing taconite or semi-taconite may pay annual dues in the range municipalities and civic associations, provided that in such subdivisions having a population of 3,000 inhabitants dues don't exceed \$500 per year, and if less than 3,000 inhabitants they don't exceed \$250 annually.

### MUNICIPALITIES (cont.)

- Chap. 323 Authorizes the council of any city, village, or borough, or the HF 1183 board of county commissioners, to adopt and enforce regulations to control and prevent the spread of plant pests and disease.
- Chap. 330 Requires that the annual license fee be fixed in advance for all SF 917 "on sale" liquor licenses by the governing bodies of the various municipalities.
- Chap. 393 Provides for the repair, remodeling, demolition or removal of SF 642 hazardous and substandard buildings in cities, villages, towns or boroughs.
- Chap. 417 Provides for the terms of office of village officers described in HF 893 the bill.
- Chap. 536Amends the law relating to police relief associations in certainSF 1482villages by increasing the deductions from  $3\frac{1}{2}$  to  $4\frac{1}{2}$ % of the members'<br/>monthly pay. Provides for a change in the tax levy for police<br/>pension purposes in the event that a levy becomes necessary.

Chap. 561 Allows any city of the fourth class to abandon its home rule charter HF 1184 and return to the status of a village. Outlines the procedure to be followed.

- Chap. 574 Makes a minor change in the law relating to the assumption of the HF 1928 powers of villages by certain towns.
- Chap. 581 Relates to the holding of local option elections for the sale of HF 1400 liquor in villages; provides that any local authority shall have the power to impose further restrictions on the sale and possession of intoxicating liquor within its limits.
- Chap. 583 Waives the requirement of public sale of municipal obligations when SF 1245 the proceeds of such sale don't exceed \$100,000. Effective July 1, 1965.
- Chap. 670 Provides for zoning, official maps, subdivision regulations and SF 826 various official controls for municipal planning and development.
- Chap. 712 Allows any city, village or borough except in counties housing a HF 251 city of the first class to divide its area into an urban and a rural service district for tax purposes. Defines what the rural service district shall be composed of.
- Chap. 744 Relates to the cooperative exercise of powers by the political sub-SF 918 divisions of the state. Provides that when the agreement calls for the use of a joint board the board shall be deemed to be representatives of the parties to the agreement and is deemed to comply with statutory or charter provisions of a board.

- 44 -

# MUNICIPALITIES (cont.)

Chap. 856 Validates the incorporation of any village made in conformance HF 631 with Minnesota Statutes between April 20, 1961 and the effective date of this act.

Chap. 899 Relates to the annexation and detachment of land of municipalities HF 253 and the incorporation of villages. Amends the law relating to the appointment and duties of the commission having jurisdiction over such matters.

## MUNICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class

General --

- Chap. 274 Amends the law relating to budget estimates of county welfare boards SF 1281 by providing that the board of county commissioners and the council of a city of the first class may appoint a welfare budget advisory committee. Such committee shall report its recommendations not later than September 1 of each year.
- Chap. 501 Relates to metropolitan planning and development commissions, includ-HF 587 ing the Twin Cities Metropolitan Planning Commission, increases the mill rate levy allowable for budget purposes.
- Chap. 547 Makes minor changes in the law relating to retirement allowances for SF 1910 employees of cities of the first class and the investment of retirement funds made by the retirement boards.
- Chap. 575 Makes certain increases in the benefits accruing to beneficiaries of HF 2032 members of retirement associations who are employees of cities of the first class.
- Chap. 688 Relates to retirement allowances for employees of cities of the first HF 1036 class.
- Chap. 754 Provides that retirement allowances for employees of cities of the SF 1621 first class are not assignable or subject to execution, nor are the proceeds of payment subject to the inheritance tax provisions of the state.

Duluth --

Chap. 156 \*Authorizes the City of Duluth to levy an annual tax on all property HF 934 within the city to pay for the portion of the cost of local improvements which won't sustain a special assessment.

Chap. 179 \*Relates to the Firemen's Relief Association of the City of Duluth; SF 643 provides for the payment of benefits in certain cases.

Chap. 569 Relates to the salaries to be paid to the judges and various officers HF 1403 of the Municipal Court of Duluth.

Chap. 621 \*Relates to the City of Duluth; authorizes the city to pay a longev-HF 1883 ity severance award to any employee who meets certain requirements.

Chap. 771 Relates to the Municipal Court of the City of Duluth, provides for HF 1355 transcript rates and the compensation of special judges of the Municipal Court.

Minneapolis --

Chap. 336 \*Provides that the members of the Library Board shall be designated SF 1620 as library trustees.

- 46 -

MUNICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class (cont.)

Chap. 347 \*Authorizes the City of Minneapolis to provide for the payment of HF 1606 its employees by check and waiving any requirement for signing the payroll by the employee.

Chap. 407 \*Provides for the levying and payment of special assessments for SF 1607 certain curb and gutter or sidewalk improvements in Minneapolis.

Chap. 408 \*Allows the Library Board to establish rental collection, make SF 1627 charges for museum and planitarium services, and to charge rental for space used by private groups.

Chap. 493 \*Relates to the Policemen's Pension Fund in the City of Minneapolis; SF 1396 deals with who may be accepted as a new member, and members disabled while on duty.

Chap. 519 \*Relates to the Firemen's Relief Association; provides for certain HF 2073 pensions for widows and children of certain deceased members, and other benefits.

Chap. 520 \*Relates to the Policeman's Pension Association; persons not entitled HF 2074 to pensions, and suits for benefits.

Chap. 534 \*Relates to the mill levy by the City of Minneapolis for the Police-SF 1397 men's Pension Fund, and the use of such moneys.

Chap. 578 \*Increases the contribution by firemen from  $4\frac{1}{2}$  to 5% when the Fire-HF 2072 men's Relief Fund is insufficient to meet payments. Increases the maximum tax levy for the Firemen's Relief Association from 1 3/4 to 2 mills.

Chap. 818 \*Relates to the qualifications for membership and terms of office of HF 2017 trustees of the Library Board of the City of Minneapolis; eliminates ex officio members, and authorizes the Library Board of the City of Minneapolis to appoint members to fill vacancies.

Chap. 848 \*Fixes the maximum compensation of certain members of the City Board SF 1592 of Estimate and Taxation of the City of Minneapolis at \$25.00 per day but not to exceed \$1,250.00 annually.

Chap. 887 \*Authorizes the use of lands, rights and easements conveyed by the HF 2197 state for the purposes of public terminals and port and industrial facilities and the making of agreements for the operation or leasing thereof, and the taxation and financing of such facilities.

Chap. 897 \*Authorizes the Library Board of Minneapolis to include in any SF 1616 contracts with other political subdivisions for library service provision for representation of that subdivision on the Board when it is acting on subdivision matters.

- 47 -

MUNICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class (cont.)

Chap. 898 \*Provides that when the Library Board of the City of Minneapolis acts SF 1628 as the Library Board of the Hennepin County library system there shall be six additional members on the Board from the county outside the City of Minneapolis appointed by the Board of County Commissioners.

St. Paul --

- Chap. 211 \*Authorizes the City of St. Paul to invest municipal funds in bank HF 1046 savings certificates.
- Chap. 212 \*Extends indefinitely the effect of the law allowing the City of St. HF 1047 Paul to waive residence requirements for applicants for the position of police officers.
- Chap. 213 \*Authorizes the appointment of a Deputy City Clerk for the City of HF 1048 St. Paul and outlines his duties and powers.
- Chap. 269 \*Establishes the budget procedures to be followed by the City of St. SF 1260 Paul.
- Chap. 465 \*Increases the mill levy from 1.8 mills to 2 mills, the sum to be SF 1322 paid into the Policemen's Pension Fund.
- Chap. 551 Describes certain state owned real estate and authorizes the Governor, SF 2006 upon the recommendation of the Commissioner of Highways, to convey such land to the City of St. Paul.
- Chap. 659 \*Relates to severance pay for employees in the City of St. Paul; HF 1855 repeals section allowing a 35/100 mill levy on the assessed value of property for the payment of severance pay.
- Chap. 693 \*Relates to tort liability of the City of St. Paul; provides for HF 1912 self insurance and the method of financing for such liability.
- Chap. 695 Relates to the Municipal and Conciliation Court of the City of St.
   HF 2105 Paul. Provides for increased jurisdiction of Municipal and Conciliation Court; provides for judges salaries.
- Chap. 705 \*Relates to the special school district of St. Paul; establishes an SF 2062 independent school district and sets forth the regulations under which the district shall operate.
- Chap. 708 \*Authorizes the City of St. Paul to issue bonds to cover the cost of SF 2066 prevention, rehabilitation and restoration projects resulting from flood damage.
- Chap. 726 Relates to the jurisdiction of justices of the peace; provides that HF 1639 the statutory jurisdiction described in M.S. 633.01 does not apply to the territory within the State Fair Grounds.

- 48 -

MUNICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class (cont.)

Chap. 729 Authorizes the Governor, upon the recommendation of the Commission-HF 1876 er of Highways, to convey certain real estate to the City of St. Paul.

Chap. 730 Authorizes the Governor, upon the recommendation of the Commissioner HF 1877 of Highways, to convey certain described land to the City of St. Paul.

Chap. 781 \*Provides for mandatory retirement for certain employees of the City HF 2053 of St. Paul.

Chap. 782 \*Provides for insurance coverage for elected officials of the City of HF 2055 St. Paul who, upon retiring, have served in an elected position and otherwise as a full time employee for a total period of not less than 20 years.

Chap. 783 \*Relates to the retirement of employees of the City of St. Paul and HF 2056 certain benefits to be realized by such employees.

Chap. 790 \*Makes certain changes in the law relating to the disbursement of SF 1843 benefits to survivors by the Firemen's Relief Association.

Chap. 791 \*Establishes the annual salary of the Mayor at \$13,000.00 and the SF 1850 Councilmen at \$12,000.00.

Chap. 793 \*Authorizes the governing body of the City of St. Paul to make SF 2027 emergency appropriations in the event of disaster.

Chap. 865 SF 2049 Authorizes the governing bodies of the City of St. Paul, the Village of Maplewood, and Ramsey County to enter into a cooperative agreement for the purpose of constructing storm water sewer facilities. Provides for the issuance of bonds to finance the project. Contingent upon the approval of the governing bodies of the aforementioned political subdivisions and in compliance with M.S. 645.021.

Chap. 866 \*Provides that any commission established by ordinance in the City SF 2073 of St. Paul relating to civil rights shall have certain powers. Further provides for judicial review for the enforcement of the commission's orders by the district court.

\* These acts shall become effective only after approval by the governing body of the city and upon compliance with M.S. 645.021.

#### RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

- Chap. 104 Relates to Public Employees Retirement Association. Includes in SF 683 the definition of "dependent child" any child adopted by a member and his wife, who within two years after death of the member is adjudged the adopted child of the deceased member's surviving wife.
- Chap. 110 Provides that the State Junior College Board may purchase retire-HF 52 ment annuities for employees and provides for the deposit of funds in an annuity account established in the state treasury.
- Chap. 174 Provides for tax levy for special funds of the policemen's relief SF 152 association in cities of the third class.
- Chap. 230 Provides for certain changes in the law relating to those who qualify HF 839 for membership in the State Employees Retirement Association. Makes provisions for the payment of benefits subsequent to the death of the member.
- Chap. 359 Provides for financial reporting and actuarial surveys for certain HF 1386 retirement funds including the State Employees Retirement Fund, Public Employees Retirement Fund, Teachers Retirement Fund, Highway Patrolmen's Retirement Fund, and the State Police Officers Retirement Fund.
- Chap. 432 Relates to Public EmployeesRetirement and benefits to certain employees SF 672 upon retirement.
- Chap. 459 Relates to the Public Employees Retirement Association and permits the SF 992 payment of an annuity to certain school district employees.
- Chap. 460 Relates to the Public Employees Retirement System and defines the SF 1039 allowable period of service in the case of certain school bus drivers employed by certain school districts.
- Chap. 572 Provides for allowable service relative to the Public Employees Retire-HF 1776 ment Association in certain cases for employees of school districts.
- Chap. 575 Makes certain increases in the benefits accruing to beneficiaries of HF 2032 members of retirement associations who are employees of cities of the first class.
- Chap. 590 Excludes students employed by the state junior colleges from the HF 1271 State Employees Retirement Association unless approved for membership by the State Junior College Board.
- Chap. 644 Provides for the payment of an additional \$10.00 per month to HF 1217 annuitants who draw an annuity pursuant to the 1915 Teachers Insurance and Retirement Law.
- Chap. 671 Relates to firemen's relief associations; provides for distribution of SF 901 the two percent fire insurance tax to certain nonprofit corporations.

- 50 -

### **RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (cont.)**

Chap. 688 Relates to retirement allowances for employees of cities of the HF 1036 first class.

Chap. 691 Relates to the State Employees Retirement Association, provides for HF 1430 appointment of an executive secretary and assistant secretary.

Chap. 701 Relates to the State Employees Retirement Association, deals with SF 1350 payments of former members' service allowance to a deceased former member's representative, beneficiary or legal representative.

Chap. 714 Relates to the Public Employees Retirement Association, provides that HF 488 after July 1, 1965 deductions shall be received on a salary limited to \$6,000.00 annually. Amends that portion of the law relating to employer contributions.

Chap. 715 Amends the law pertaining to the purchasing of prior service credits HF 494 by members of the Public Employees Retirement Association. Provides for the method to be followed by members purchasing credits.

Chap. 716 Provides for coverage under the old age, survivors, and disability HF 498 insurance provisions of Title II of the Federal Social Security Act for employees of certain public hospitals, and members of the Public Employees Retirement Association.

Chap. 804 Relates to the State Teachers Retirement Fund; provides certain SF 1389 annuities in the case of transfers by members of such fund.

Chap. 814 Relates to the Public Employees Retirement Association; makes certain HF 489 additions in the choice of options available for receiving benefits.

Chap. 821 Relates to Teachers Retirement Association; provides for members on SF 752 leave; changes minimum salary from which deductions can be taken.

Chap. 833 Relates to the Public Employees Retirement Association, provides SF 751 survivorship benefits to the widows of certain town employees.

Chap. 861 Relates to the State Employees Retirement Association and provides SF 1954 that no deduction, either 3% or 6% shall be made from any annual salary in excess of \$7,200.00. Effective July 1, 1965.

Chap. 880 Relates to the Public Employees Retirement Association; defines HF 2244 temporary employee, and the procedure for applying for benefits.

Chap. 889 Relates to the Highway Patrolmen's Retirement Association; increases SF 461 amount each patrolman shall pay into the fund and the amount the state shall pay into the fund; also increases benefits.

#### STATE GOVERNMENT

Examining and Licensing Boards --

Chap. 64 Relates to the State Board of Chiropractic Examiners; provides for HF 153 compensation when engaged in board activities.

- Chap. 123 Redefines certain powers of the State Board of Electricity by HF 560 providing that the board shall have no jurisdiction over the signal systems operated by railroads and equipment owned or leased by a utility.
- Chap. 471 Relates to the State Board of Hairdressing and Beauty Culture Exam-HF 543 iners. Defines the term "junior instructor" and establishes the annual fee of such persons at \$1.00 and the annual fee for senior instructors at \$5.00. Makes additional stipulations as to those who are eligible to serve on the Board.
- Chap. 803 Relates to the State Board of Dental Examiners; proposes that per SF 1345 diem compensation of the board members be increased to \$50 and that salaries of the secretary-treasurer and clerical employees be fixed by resolution of the board.
- Chap. 832 Relates to the Minnesota Athletic Commission; confers jurisdiction SF 331 over certain television broadcasts, provides for collection of part of the gross receipts of such telecasts. Increases the per diem to be received by members of the Athletic Commission to \$25.00 per day and increases the maximum annual salary of the Boxing Commissioner to \$5,000.00.
- Chap. 879 Designates the State Board of Education as the state agency for HF 2183 federal funds for elementary and secondary schools. Empowers the Board to contract with the federal government for interchange of personnel under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965.

Major Appropriations --

- Chap. 58 Appropriates money to the Commissioner of Public Welfare for current HF 727 expense: Anoka State Hospital - \$21,000; current expense: Moose Lake State Hospital - \$24,000; to the Secretary of State, Motor Vehicle Division for salaries - \$25,000; supplies - \$15,000; license plates -\$125,000; and to the Revisor of Statutes for bill drafting - \$8,000.
- Chap. 532 Appropriates \$3.5 million from the Employment Security Building Fund SF 1270 created by this Act and authorizes the acquisition of land for the construction of a building for the Department of Employment Security. Authorizes the sale of state bonds.

Chap. 809 Appropriates moneys for enumerated education purposes. HF 2188

Chap. 863 Appropriates funds to the Department of Highways for salaries, equip-SF 2017 ment and the contingent fund for the years ending June 30, 1966 & 1967.

- 52 -

### STATE GOVERNMENT (cont.)

Chap. 882 Relates to public buildings and lands, authorizes the acquisition HF 2247 and betterment of public lands and buildings, the acquisition by gift, purchase or condemnation of certain real property, the equipping and replacement of equipment of certain buildings and appropriates money therefore.

Chap. 886 Appropriates moneys for the organization and operation of state gov-HF 2176 ernment, includes appropriations for the Department of Public Welfare and Corrections, Public Assistance Programs, Old Age Assistance, Aid to Dependent Children, Aid to the Blind, Aid to the Disabled and Public Relief, and for other related purposes.

Chap. 901 Appropriates moneys for the organization and administration of state HF 2177 government including appropriations for the Senate and House and the various commissions created or continued.

Chap. 902 Appropriates moneys for the conservation and development of the SF 2016 state's natural resources; provides for the maintenance of the State Historical Society, for county and district agricultural societies and other agricultural purposes; for sheriff's per diem and mileage in certain cases, and for aids to local subdivisions of government and school districts.

Revision Laws --

. Chap. 35 Relates to errors in Minnesota Statutes and makes their provisions HF 33 conform with the Criminal Code of 1963.

Chap. 41 Relates to errors in Minnesota Session Laws and provides for correc-HF 40 tion of erroneous, ambiguous, and obsolete references and terminology.

Chap. 42 Relates to errors in Minnesota Session Laws and provides for correc-HF 45 tion of erroneous, ambiguous, and obsolete references and terminology.

Chap. 45 Provides for the correction of errors and the deletion of conflicting HF 31 or obsolete provisions of the law.

Chap. 49 Provides for the correction of errors and the deletion of conflicting HF 34 or obsolete provisions of the law.

Chap. 51 Provides for the correction of errors and the deletion of conflicting HF 32 or obsolete provisions of the law.

Chap. 79 Provides for the correction of errors and the deletion of conflicting HF 37 or obsolete provisions of the law.

Chap. 114 Corrects certain obsolete language in the statute pertaining to the SF 225 Department of Military Affairs.

Chap. 812 Provides for certain changes in various statutes to effect conform-HF 161 ance with the Uniform Commercial Code.

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESOTA - 53 -

Chap. 813 Relates to the filing by certain public utilities of certain HF 413 instruments required to be filed under the provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code.

State Departments --

- Chap. 48 Appropriates to the Adjutant General the sum of \$7,127.50 for the SF 31 payment of a claim, and \$10,372.50 for reimbursement for expenditures for armory maintenance.
- Chap. 65 Transfers custodial care of part of the lands of the Fergus Falls
   HF 255 State Hospital from the Department of Administration to the State
   Junior College Board.
- Chap. 120 Relates to the regulations promulgated by the Railroad and Warehouse SF 552 Commission and provides that any motor carrier having gross revenues of less than \$15,000 per year may be exempted from filing an annual report at the discretion of the Commissioner.

Chap. 130 Appropriates money to the Commissioner of Public Welfare for certain SF 948 state institutions.

- Chap. 142 Appropriates \$17,000 to the Revisor of Statutes for preparation of SF 821 materials for Minnesota Statutes by automatic data processing methods.
- Chap. 167 Provides for investment of state airport funds by the State Board HF 1086 of Investment upon request of the Commissioner of Aeronautics.
- Chap. 245 Makes minor changes in the law relating to highway railroad grade SF 1101 crossings and the duties and functions of the Railroad and Warehouse Commission with regard to the establishment and cost of safety devices at such crossings.
- Chap. 291 Relates to marks and brands for animals, provides for the registra-SF 76 tion of such marks and brands with the State Livestock Sanitary Board.
- Chap. 301 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to sell surplus earth HF 793 materials from roadway excavations to political subdivisions and public agencies of the state.
- Chap. 303 Relates to the Boiler Inspection Division of the Industrial Commis-HF 1016 sion, requires the Chief and Deputy Chief of the division to be licensed as chief grade A engineers.
- Chap. 304 Appropriates \$30,000 to the Adjutant General for repair, restoration, HF 1201 and preservation of regimental battle flags, standards and guidons of military organizations of the state or the United States.

Chap. 306 Relates to investment procedures to be followed by the State Board HF 1215 of Investment and the records to be maintained by the Board.

- 54 -

#### STATE GOVERNMENT (cont.)

Chap. 312 Appropriates the sum of \$120,000 to the Adjutant General for the SF 21 purpose of making alterations and additions to the Moorhead Armory.

Chap. 353 Appropriates the sum of \$225,000 to the Commissioner of Administra-HF 1241 tion to be used to air condition the surgical suite and clinical wards 2 and 3 of the administration clinic building at Rochester State Hospital.

Chap. 354 SF 1291 Allows the Commissioner of Administration after consultation with the Legislative Building Commission to adopt a plan for the construction or improvement of a building that will cost more than has been appropriated for that purpose if the funds in excess of the appropriation are furnished by the federal government and granted to Minnesota by federal law.

Chap. 366 Appropriates \$1,000 to the Adjutant General for the erection and dedication of a monument memorializing the service of Minnesota National Guard Troops on the Mexican Border in 1916 and 1917.

Chap. 387 Provides for research, production and market development for turkeys HF 1010 and turkey products and provides for the appointment, by the Commissioner of Agriculture, of a 15 member advisory board to assist in the above effort.

Chap. 411 Provides that the board of managers of the State Agricultural Society SF 208 shall designate one or more banks as depositories of the Society's moneys, and may require the treasurer of the Society to deposit all or part of such money in such bank or banks. Outlines the procedures to be followed. Allows the Society to engage in transactions involving real estate in its own name.

Chap. 431 Increases the annual payments to the governing body and the president SF 569 of the State Agricultural Society to \$1,000 and \$1,400 respectively.

Chap. 529Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways, other state agencies,SF 662political subdivisions, and other governmental authorities to<br/>enter into land acquisition agreements for public purposes.

Chap. 599 Authorizes the Commissioner of Administration to sell or distribute SF 676 copies of laws and resolutions passed by the legislature. Establishes the charges to be made.

Chap. 606 Relates to the Department of Aeronautics; describes limits on the SF 1731 Commissioner's authority to spend.

Chap. 685 Relates to statewide planning; creates a planning agency in the SF 1716 executive branch of the state government, prescribes its powers and duties, appropriates \$25,000 per year for carrying out the act.

Chap. 704 Relates to housing and redevelopment; transfers all powers of the SF 1710 Commissioner of Administration in relation thereto to the Department of Business Development. Appropriates \$20,000 to the Department of Business Development to carry out the provisions of this act.

- Chap. 796 Relates to the State Agricultural Society; amends certain provisions HF 480 relating to enforcement of laws, rules, ordinances, and by-laws on the grounds of the Society.
- Chap. 800 Relates to state officers and employees, places seasonal employees HF 1719 of the Department of Taxation in the unclassified service.
- Chap. 801 Relates to school taxes and state aid for the independent school HF 1874 district of the City of St. Paul. Effective July 1, 1965. This act is contingent upon approval of the governing body of the City of St. Paul and upon compliance with M.S. 645.021.
- Chap. 808 Makes certain minor language changes in the law relating to the HF 1615 labeling of intoxicating liquor containers and allows the Liquor Control Commissioner to require the affixing of labels to 1/2 pint or larger containers rather than on the carton.
- Chap. 823 Authorizes the Commissioner of Administration to purchase and furnish SF 1226 uniforms to certain employees of his department.
- Chap. 824 Relates to the central motor pool and the rules and regulations of SF 1305 the Commissioner of Administration relating thereto.
- Chap. 890 Provides that employee contributions to the State Police Officers' SF 1159 Retirement Fund shall be in an amount equal to 6% of the salary of every member, not to exceed \$7,200 annually and provides for an employer contribution of  $3\frac{1}{2}$ % of the salary upon which the deduction is based. Provides for death benefits for survivors upon the death of members.
- Chap. 891 Restricts the use of sales ratio studies prepared for the E.A.R.C. SF 1653 by providing that such studies prepared by the Commissioner of Taxation for the E.A.R.C. for the use in determining school aids shall not be admissable as evidence in any proceeding, except actions for review of the determination of the school aids payable under M.S. 124.21.
- Chap. 892 Relates to the manner of issuance and sale of trunk highway bonds SF 1729 as provided by Article IX, Section 6, and Article XVI, Section 12 of the Minnesota Constitution. Provides for the means to be followed in expending the moneys realized and the provision of funds for the payment of the bonds.
- Chap. 903 Provides that the Commissioner of Administration shall establish a HF 1051 state teletypewriter communication network; creates a State Communications Advisory Board; authorizes the participation in such network by the counties and agencies of the state.

- 56 -

State Employees --

Chap. 57 Appropriates moneys from the General Revenue Fund and the Trunk HF 677 Highway Fund to be used to pay workmen's compensation claims for state employees.

Chap. 104 Relates to Public Employees Retirement Association. Includes in the SF 683 definition of "dependent child" any child adopted by a member and his wife, who within two years after death of the member is adjudged the adopted child of the deceased member's surviving wife.

Chap. 230 Provides for certain changes in the law relating to those who qualify HF 839 for membership in the State Employees Retirement Association. Makes provisions for the payment of benefits subsequent to the death of a member.

Chap. 298 Relates to Civil Service; establishes a one year probationary period HF 558 for special teachers employed under the classified service.

Chap. 299 Provides for keeping of records of oral examinations for one year HF 562 from the date that an applicant's name is placed on an eligible list by the Civil Service Department.

Chap. 459 Relates to the Public Employees Retirement Association and permits SF 992 the payment of an annuity to certain school district employees.

Chap. 491 Provides for certain exemptions for student employees of the state SF 1374 at the state colleges from requirement of M.S. 1961, Section 43.09, Subdivision 2, as amended in Session Laws 1963, Chapter 436.

Chap. 497 Relates to the authority of the Civil Service Board in disciplinary HF 299 actions and provides for pre-hearing conferences.

Chap. 590 Excludes students employed by the state junior colleges from the HF 1271 State EmployeesRetirement Association unless approved for membership by the State Junior College Board.

Chap. 646 Appropriates the sum of \$54,730.10 to the fund of the State Employees HF 1428 Retirement Association to cover employer contributions owed by the Department of Military Affairs.

Chap. 714 Relates to the Public Employees Retirement Association, provides HF 488 that after July 1, 1965 deductions shall be received on a salary limited to \$6,000.00 annually. Amends that portion of the law relating to employer contributions.

Chap. 715 Amends the law pertaining to the purchasing of prior service credits HF 494 by members of the Public Employees Retirement Association. Provides for the method to be followed by members purchasing credits.

## STATE GOVERNMENI (cont.)

Chap. 766 Relates to deductions from salaries of state employees of sums HF 1015 designated by them for payment to the United Fund.

Chap. 780 Relates to employees in the classified service of the State Civil HF 2000 Service, provides certain insurance, medical and related benefits.

Chap. 839 Relates to the prohibition of strikes of certain public employees, SF 1235 and the adjustment of grievances of such employees.

Chap. 861 Relates to the State Employees Retirement Association and provides SF 1954 that no deduction, either 3% or 6% shall be made from any annual salary in excess of \$7,200.00. Effective July 1, 1965.

Chap. 881 Relates to the compensation of members of the legislature, raises HF 2245 their pay from \$4,800 to \$9,600 for a two year period. Effective January 1, 1967.

Miscellaneous --

Chap. 32 Relates to depositories receiving state funds; provides that such SF 294 funds in inactive depositories shall not receive an interest rate more than the maximum rate authorized to be paid by Minnesota state banks other than mutual savings banks.

Chap. 113 Relates to the investment of retirement and highway funds and provides SF 54 for the types of investments that may be made.

Chap. 140 Relates to compensation for illness, death, injuries or damage to SF 563 property sustained by a member of the military forces while in the service of the state, and amends the jurisdiction of the State Claims Commission and the powers of the Adjutant General in connection therewith.

Chap. 203 Relates to the publication of Minnesota Statutes and provides that SF 489 the decimal system of numbering shall be continued in all future additions of Minnesota Statutes, except that the use of alphabetical letters in addition to the decimal numbers is permitted.

Chap. 243 Amends the law relating to buildings financed by public moneys by SF 776 redefining the terms "public building" and "remodeling" and stating that the act shall not require the remodeling of public buildings solely to provide accessibility to the physically handicapped when such remodeling would not otherwise be undertaken.

Chap. 305 Sets forth the means for computing the interest on bonds purchased HF 1213 by the State Employees Retirement Fund.

Chap. 382 Provides that hunting of wild game is prohibited on any land which HF 705 has been posted by the lessee of state lands to prohibit hunting, such prohibition applies to all persons including the lessee.

- 58 -

#### STATE GOVERNMENT (cont.)

Chap. 435 Relates to the maturities and redemption of obligations evidencing SF 1201 municipal indebtedness; authorizes the establishment of serial maturities for multiple issues and term maturities for special obligations and the provision of funds for the redemption of the obligations before maturity and before the earliest redemption date, from proceeds of refunding obligations and other funds placed in escrow for this purpose.

Chap. 473 Provides for sale of certain tax forfeited land lying within 1500 HF 843 feet of the established harbor line located in harbors upon the Great Lakes - St. Lawrence Seaway, under certain conditions.

Chap. 495 Relates to certain specified claims against the state; authorizes SF 1636 suit against the state and waives immunity in the specified instances; appropriates moneys to pay such claims.

Chap. 523 Relates to regulation by the Railroad and Warehouse Commission of SF 123 motor vehicle transportation for hire.

Chap. 623 Provides for the promulgation of the State Building Code and its SF 480 adoption by political subdivisions. Appropriates \$50,000 for carrying out the purposes of this act.

Chap. 643 Raises the compensation of members of the Board of Trustees of the HF 1214 Minnesota Soldiers' Home from \$15.00 to \$25.00 per day. Changes the designation of persons admitted to the home from inmates to residents.

Chap. 676 Relates to lost or abandoned property found on state property; pro-SF 1227 vides for custody of property found.

Chap. 684 Relates to a state ceremonial building and provides for living HF 1676 quarters for the Governor.

Chap. 689 Proposes an amendment to the constitution of the state to permit HF 1108 legislators to hold certain offices and to provide for resignations of legislators.

Chap. 694 Relates to regional planning; provides for regional planning boards, HF 2038 prescribes their powers and duties, and confers certain powers on local governmental units.

Chap. 702 Appropriates \$2,750 to the Department of Business Development to SF 1410 pay expenses of sending the Minnesota Senior Citizens Band to the World Fair and Washington, D. C.

Chap. 722 Provides for the publication, sale and distribution of Minnesota HF 1552 Reports. Outlines the duties of the Commissioner of Administration in this regard and appropriates the sum of \$30,000 for this purpose.

- 59 -

## STATE GOVERNMENT (cont.)

Chap. 743 Creates a permanent Reassessment Revolving Fund in the sum of SF 865 \$500,000.

Chap. 769 Relates to state owned buildings; appropriates \$40,000 for the HF 1242 rehabilitation of the children's building at Glen Lake Sanitarium, and Oak Terrace Nursing Home, and provides for the leasing thereof.

- Chap. 806 Relates to public contracts and the interest of public officers SF 753 therein, requires disclosure of such interest by the officer.
- Chap. 825 Relates to certain contracts with the state for doing public work; SF 1305 provides security to the state in certain cases in lieu of a performance bond.
- Chap. 829 Authorizes the alteration, repair and rehabilitation of certain state SF 2034 buildings and replacement of certain equipment; appropriates money for these purposes.
- Chap. 830 Relates to the powers of the Executive Council in the case of state SF 2081 emergencies, permits expenditure of not more than \$2,000,000 in a fiscal year when an emergency exists.

Chap. 834 Provides for appeals to the Supreme Court by the Municipal Commis-SF 785 sion under certain conditions.

#### TAXATION

General --

Chap. 101 Relates to excise tax on gasoline, excludes farm tractor fuel, defines SF 668 the term "petroleum products" and requires the attachment of tank truck tags in certain instances.

Chap. 102 Relates to refunds of excise tax on gasoline and special fuel. Requires SF 669 the approval of the Attorney General before certain refunds may be made.

Chap. 107 Relates to the taxation and registration of motor vehicles classified HF 274 as classic cars.

Chap. 108 Provides for a tax on motor vehicles known as station wagons. HF 446

Chap. 122 Provides for the imposition of an excise tax at the same rate as the SF 666 gasoline excise tax on all marine gasoline sold or stored in the state and makes changes in the excise tax on aviation gasoline.

Chap. 134 Increase the cigarette tax on cigarettes weighing not more than 3 pounds SF 736 per thousand to 4 mills on each cigarette and on cigarettes weighing more than 3 pounds per thousand to 8 mills per cigarette.

Chap. 135 Relates to taxes paid on tobacco products. Authorizes a tax credit SF 738 to distributors on shipments of tax paid tobacco products to retailers outside of Minnesota.

Chap. 136 Relates to taxation of cigarettes, strikes section which states such taxes are conclusively presumed to be direct taxes on the retail consumer, prepaid for purposes of convenience only.

Chap. 137 Relates to gross earnings taxes and authorizes the Commissioner of SF 742 Taxation to allow destruction of certain verification papers.

Chap. 141 Provides for taxation of tobacco products purchased and sold by the SF 737 State of Minnesota.

Chap. 161 Relates to taxation of aircraft, provides for prorated taxation on HF 1089 aircraft becoming subject to taxation during a fiscal year.

Chap. 176 Relates to registration and taxation of motor vehicles owned by new SF 237 residents, including house trailers and other mobile homes.

Chap. 202 Relates to the taxation of motor vehicles, amends M.S. 1961, Section HF 313 168.013, Subd. 1, as amended by Laws 1963, Chapter 119, to include motorcycles and motorized bicycles with two wheels at a rate of \$3.00; and motorized bicycles with sidecars at \$5.00.

Chap. 357 Relates to taxes and provides for the determination of minimum refunds, HF 819 minimum assessments, and the cancellation of amounts below such minimums.

Chap. 367 Relates to credits against taxable net income for contributions, SF 1033 provides maximums for such credits.

Chap. 374 Relates to school districts, changes the limitation on tax levies. HF 1236

- Chap. 386 Authorizes the issuance of emergency tax anticipation certificates HF 1005 of indebtedness due to taconite or semi-taconite plant construction in school districts. Provides for a tax levy by school districts where enrollment increases by 10% the average pupil units of the school enrollment due to the construction of such plants.
- Chap. 429 Relates to aeronautics, provides for certain exemptions from regis-HF 2091 tration and taxation requirements.
- Chap. 454 Provides for the utilization of documentary stamp meters by the SF 735 county treasurers. Empowers the Commissioner of Taxation to provide rules for the use of such machines.
- Chap. 455 Requires those transporting tobacco products into the state by means SF 739 other than common carrier to report such transportation to the Commissioner of Taxation within 30 days. Lists certain exceptions to the above requirement.
- Chap. 456 Requires those transporting tobacco products into the state by common SF 740 carrier to file monthly reports before the 10th of each month. Outlines the information to be included in the report.
- Chap. 506 Relates to the powers of the Commissioner of Taxation; authorizes him HF 825 to return remittances erroneously submitted.
- Chap. 641 Relates to the taxation of taconite and semi-taconite deposits and HF 927 requires the taxpayer to file on or before October 10 of each year with various state and local officials, an estimate of the tax that he owes based on production and mining up to September 30 of the tax year and an approximation of what will be produced after September 30 of each year.
- Chap. 642 Relates to the participation of municipalities in tax hearings and HF 1076 requires the Commissioner of Taxation to give written notice to such municipalities when the property owner has applied for a reduction of assessed valuation in an amount exceeding \$30,000.00.

Chap. 656 Provides that county attorneys shall prosecute any violations arising HF 1761 from the failure to pay gasoline excise taxes; allows such action to be commenced in the county where the defendant resides or in Ramsey County.

Chap. 675 Relates to tax on express companies, assesses tax equal to five SF 1073 percent of gross earnings.

- 62 -

Chap. 698 Relates to the Board of Tax Appeals; changes its name to the Tax SF 163 Court, and increases its members compensation from \$25 to \$45 per day.

Chap. 712 Allows any city, village, or borough except in counties housing a HF 251 city of the first class to divide its area into an urban and a rural service district for tax purposes. Defines what the rural service district shall be composed of.

Chap. 765 Relates to the selection of assets to satisfy a bequest or transfer HF 921 for the purpose of the marital deduction by the decedent's trustee, representative or other fiduciary.

Chap. 831 Provides for the taxation of cigarettes and tobacco products purchased SF 2058 and sold by the state, its agencies or governmental subdivisions, except for institutions under the control and management of the Commissioner of Corrections.

Chap. 893 Relates to the taxation of agglomerating facilities and agglomerate SF 1810 reserves, defines agglomerates as being merchantable iron ore aggregates which are produced by agglomeration. Establishes the amounts of taxes and provides for the distribution of the proceeds received.

Income Tax --

Chap. 29 Relates to Income Tax School Fund and directs payment of special SF 8 state aids to school districts or unorganized territories for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1964.

Chap. 191 Relates to taxes measured by net income, allows filing of an amended SF 1077 return when the original return is in error.

Chap. 215 Amends the law relating to the payment of state income taxes by HF 1157 providing that the Commissioner of Taxation may extend the time for compliance if in his opinion the strict enforcement of the provision of the law would be inequitable.

Chap. 244 Provides for the reporting, by individuals or corporations, of all SF 1055 payments made in the regular course of a trade or business during the tax year when such payments exceed \$600.00 for rent, or \$10.00 for dividends, interest, or distributions made by savings, building and loan associations to its members.

Chap. 255 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income, provides for refunds SF 1056 without demand being necessary in cases of overpayment of a self assessed liability as shown on the return filed by the taxpayer.

Chap. 341 Relates to the utilization by taxpayers of certain additional invest-HF 1158 ment credit deductions.

- Chap. 365 Relates to the deduction of interest paid in connection with taxes SF 1030 on and measured by net income.
- Chap. 390 Relates to income taxes and the computation of claims for refunds SF 1031 due to overpayment when the basis for the refund is the carry back of a net operating loss.
- Chap. 394 Relates to the taxes on the net income of small business corporations SF 780 and provides that such corporation is not to be considered a member of an affiliated group during the tax year by reason of ownership of stock in another corporation if such other corporation doesn't have taxable income during the tax year and hasn't begun to do business.
- Chap. 397 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income; provides for 4% SF 1032 interest rate when failure to file a return isn't due to wilful neglect.
- Chap. 398 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income, authorizes the SF 1057 commissioner to destroy correspondence and documents on file which don't relate specifically to any income tax return.
- Chap. 402 Provides for the allowance of losses sustained by taxpayers because SF 1251 of expropriation of property by a foreign government.
- Chap. 403 Makes changes in the definition of "gross income" by stating that SF 1253 gross income shall be as defined in Section 61 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 as amended, modified and adjusted by M.S. 290.08, 290.17 and 290.65.
- Chap. 404 Adds to the definition of corporate reorganization for tax purposes SF 1254 a stock exchange solely for all or part of the voting stock of a corporation which is in control of the acquiring corporation.
- Chap. 464 Makes minor changes in the law relating to the power of the commis-SF 1252 sioner to levy upon the property or property rights of a delinquent taxpayer.
- Chap. 487 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income; defines depreciable SF 1276 property and realty, and describes how gains from dispositions of such property shall be treated.
- Chap. 488 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income; defines "install-SF 1278 ment obligations".
- Chap. 489 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income, deals with the SF 1280 contesting of an asserted liability by the taxpayer.
- Chap. 596 Exempts corporations, individuals, estates and trusts engaged in HF 2004 the production or mining of iron ore and other ores which are subject to the occupation tax imposed by M.S. 298.

- 64 -

Chap. 645 Relates to interest on deferred payments and the tax treatment HF 1239 of such interest.

Chap. 677 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income pertaining to the SF 1279 treatment of certain stock options.

Chap. 802 Relates to disaster losses and to deductions from such losses for HF 2132 income tax purposes.

Chap. 884 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income and withholding tables; HF 854 provides for an increase in individual tax rates and personal credits, continues corporate and surtaxes, reenacts certain additional taxes, requires the payment of estimated taxes by corporations.

Inheritance, Gift and Estate Taxes --

Chap. 88 Relates to taxes on gifts and the exercise of a power of appointment. HF 385

Chap. 89 Relates to inheritance taxes and taxable transfers and the exercise HF 388 of powers of appointment.

Chap. 90 Relates to apportionment of estate taxes among beneficiaries and prescribes means for such apportionment.

Chap. 105 Makes certain changes in the law relating to inheritance taxes by SF 810 allowing the widow to deduct as an additional exemption the difference between the maximum family maintenance provided in M.S. 291.10 and that allowance actually allowed by the probate court. Provides for the exemption available in the event that the decedent leaves no widow.

Chap. 182 Provides for repayment of taxes collected in excess of the amount SF 812 legally due and provides for the payment of 4% interest on such overages.

Chap. 249 Provides for changes in deductions for determining the tax imposed SF 811 by the state's estate and transfer tax laws.

Chap. 552 Relates to the tax effect of disclaimers of property by persons HF 380 succeeding in interest to such property by will, intestacy, deed, trust or otherwise.

Chap. 555 Relates to the inheritance, estate, and transfer tax when a home-HF 826 stead is held in joint tenancy with right of survivorship; requires the submission of an affidavit by the survivor\_and outlines what the affidavit must contain.

- 65 -

#### TAXATION (cont.)

Property Taxes ---

- Chap. 184 Relates to the occupation tax on iron ore, taconite, semi-taconite SF 866 and iron sulphides, prescribes the means for ascertaining the value of such ore.
- Chap. 185 Relates to ad valorum taxes and reassessment of omitted or under-SF 868 valued property, permits the legislature, any city or village council or county board to find that property has been improperly omitted from the assessment roll.
- Chap. 259 Relates to classification of iron ore for purposes of taxation. HF 926 Defines Class 1 and Class 1A iron ore and provides for its assessment value.
- Chap. 287 Relates to notice of rates, and mailing of statements of property SF 733 taxes due; permits payment to the county treasurer after receipt of tax lists by the treasurer.
- Chap. 514 Relates to the exemption from ad valorem taxes on farm machinery HF 1620 manufactured prior to 1930, which is used only for display purposes as a collector's item.
- Chap. 545 Relates to the designation of the year in which real and personal SF 1876 property taxes become payable. Makes the law retroactive to February 28, 1963.
- Chap. 568 Relates to the notice of expiration of the period of redemption of HF 1379 lands sold at tax sales.
- Chap. 622 Exempts real property owned by the state and leased pursuant to SF 168 M.S. 161.23.
- Chap. 624 Provides for assessment of property on January 2. SF 892
- Chap. 788 Establishes certain penalties and interest on personal property SF 1814 taxes that are delinquent.
- Chap. 792 Relates to taxes on lands leased from port authorities; provides SF 1995 that the lessee is not absolved from responsibility or liability for payment of assessments or taxes on such property when the lease provides for liability on the lessee.

- 66 -

#### RESOLUTIONS

Res. 1 Memorializes the Congress of the United States to adopt S. 177, SF 689 H.R. 697, or H.R. 4969 relating to the altering of the Internal Revenue Service Regulations which now refuse recognition to professional corporations organized under the Minnesota Professional Corporation Acts.

Res. 2 Memorializes the Congress of the United States to provide for HF 1196 technical and financial assistance for soil and water conservation.

Res. 3 Memorializes the Congress of the United States to provide for SF 587 development of the Wild Rice River Watershed and construction of a dam on the Wild Rice River.

Res. 4 A resolution in support of the Waseca Chamber of Commerce invitation SF 1888 to the President of the United States, requesting his presence at the national plow matches.

Res. 5 Memorializes the Congress of the United States to call a convention to HF 522 propose an amendment to the United States Constitution relating to apportionment of state legislatures.

#### VETOED BILLS

- SF 46 A bill relating to Examiners and Deputy Examiners of Title under laws providing for the registration of title to land, and their tenure of office.
- SF 102 A bill relating to reapportionment of the state's legislative districts.
- HF 277 A bill relating to tax on and measured by net income, dealing with reciprocity.
- HF 795 A bill relating to retired judges of the Supreme Court, providing for their assignment to the Supreme Court or the district court.

#### POCKET VETOED BILLS

- SF 116 A bill establishing a board of trustees for the Minnesota Braille and Sight-Saving School. Transferring the administration, management, and operation of the school from the Department of Public Welfare to the board of trustees.
- SF 191 A bill relating to bounties to be paid for the taking of wild bear.
- SF 748 A bill relating to the management and organization of the Department of Conservation.
- SF 1563 A bill relating to the teaching profession, providing for the settlement of disputes between school boards and certified school personnel in the state's public schools.
- HF 160 A bill relating to workmen's compensation, providing for increased benefits to qualified people.
- HF 164 A bill relating to wild animals, providing for the payment of bounties.
- HF 753 A bill relating to school teachers, providing a probationary period of employment.
- HF 1094 A bill relating to the judicial council, providing for the appointment of certain members thereof by the Supreme Court.
- HF 1260 A bill relating to motor vehicles, providing for the issuance of certificates of title and the method of perfecting liens.

#### LINE ITEM VETOES

- SF 251 A bill relating to claims against the state approved by the State Claims Commission. The veto was of a duplication of the same claim.
- SF 2016 A bill appropriating money for the conservation and development of the state's natural resources. The veto was a provision for bounties on certain animals.

- 68 -

#### INTERIM COMMISSIONS

Chap. 888 SF 2001

. 888 Creates the following interim study commissions:

(1) Governmental Immunity Interim Commission

(2) Highway Interim Commission

(3) Interim Commission on Minnesota River Valley Development

(4) Interim Commission on Public Retirement Systems

(5) Governor's Commission on Employment of Handicapped Persons

(6) Indian Affairs Commission

<u>Fund</u> General Revenue - Direct General Revenue - Open	<u>1965</u> \$2,472,093.39	<u>1966</u> \$172,140,590.04 _2,243,839.00	<u>1967</u> \$177,763,054.00 <u>4,015,453.00</u>	Biennial Total \$349,903,644.04 6,259,292.00	Total Including Deficiencies \$352,375,737.43 6,259,292.00
Sub-Total	2,472,093.39	174,384,429.04	181,778,507.00	356,162,936.04	358,635,029.43
Income Tax School - Direct Income Tax School - Open	96,041.30	193,945,517.00 43,947,413.00	201,483,863.00 	395,429,380.00 89,277,540.00	395,525,421.30 
Sub-Total	96,041.30	237,892,930.00	246,813,990.00	484,706,920.00	484,802,961.30
Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation State Airports Game and Fish Trunk Highway Highway User Tax Distribution Consolidated Conservation Areas Wildlife Acquisition Rural Credits Soldiers Relief	10,000.00 70,624.04 126,491.84 176,963.88 39,094.64	80,000.00 2,396,647.00 5,972,596.00 13,322,789.00 1,966,184.00 26,000.00 342,000.00 2,658.00 45,000.00	80,000.00 261,433.00 5,458,010.00 10,865,268.00 3,115,781.00 75,000.00 342,000.00 2,686.00 45,000.00	160,000.00 2,658,080.00 11,430,606.00 24,188,057.00 5,081,965.00 101,000.00 684,000.00 5,344.00 90,000.00	170,000.00 2,658,080.00 11,501,230.04 24,314,548.84 5,258,928.88 140,094.64 684,000.00 5,344.00 90,000.00
Natural Resources Building Outlay Unclaimed Court Deposits State Parks Development State Parks Maintenance and Operations State Parks Working Capital Livestock Weighing Account	7,758,704.15 620,000.00 4,000.00 405,686.11 10,430.59 31,711.41 6,390.23	100,000.00		100,000.00	7,858,704.15 620,000.00 4,000.00 405,686.11 10,430.59 31,711.41 6,390.23
Sub-Total	9,260,096.89	24,253,874.00	20,245,178.00	44,499,052.00	53,759,148.89
GRAND TOTAL	11,828,231.58	436,531,233.04	448,837,675.00	885,368,908.04	897,197,139.62

# SUMMARY OF 1965 LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND, BY YEAR

TABLE I

- 70 -

TABLE II									
Estimated	"Open" or	"Standing"	Appropriations						
From General	Revenue	and Income	Tax School Fund	s*					

General Revenue Fund	1966	1967
Aid to Fire Departments	\$ 1,030,000.00	\$ 1,080,000.00
Surcharge for Firemen's Relief	225,000.00	225,000.00
General Revenue Refunds	100,000.00	100,000.00
Cancelled Warrants Suspense	5,000.00	5,000.00
Mpls., Cuyuna and Anoka Railroad	1,000.00	1,000.00
Maybury Compensation	1,200.00	1,200.00
Weber Compensation	1,200.00	1,200.00
Retired Clerk of Court Compensation	3,150.00	3,150.00
Administration a/c Highway Building	20,000.00	20,000.00
Abandoned Bank Deposits	2,000.00	2,000.00
Colored Oleomargarine Tax for Research	125,000.00	125,000.00
Consolidated Conservation a/c Insufficient Finances for Appropriations		75,000.00
Employers' Contributions for S.E.R.A. and O.A.S.I.	692,019.00	841,513.00
Safety Inspection at Tower-Soudan State Park (L. '65 - C. 415)	500.00	500.00
<b>T.E.R.A.</b> for Pioneer Teachers' Retirement (L. '65 - C. 644)	17,520.00	14,640.00
Tax Relief a/c Airport (L. '65 - C. 713)	5,250.00	5,250.00
Athletic Commission (L. '65 - C. 832)	15,000.00	15,000.00
Employee Insurance Program		1,500,000.00
Voting Machine Commission (L. '65 - C. 170)		
State College Board a/c Economic Opportunity Act (L. '65 - C. 679)		
Executive Council Emergency Aid (L. '65 - C. 830)		
Legislators' Retirement Program (L. '65 - C. 896)		
Sub-Total General Revenue	2,243,839.00	4,015,453.00
Income Tax School Fund		
\$10 Per Pupil Census Aid	8,650,000,00	8,750,000.00
Income Tax Refunds	35,000,000.00	36,000,000.00
Attributable Costs	217,700.00	218,700.00
Employers' Contributions for S.E.R.A. and O.A.S.I.	79,713.00	111,427.00
Employee Insurance Program		250,000.00
Sub-Total Income Tax	43,947,413.00	45,330,127.00
Total Open and Standing Appropriations	46,191,252.00	49,345,580.00

\* An "open" or "standing" appropriation is one which sets apart an unspecified or a specified amount of funds to be available for continuous use without the need for reenactment by each succeeding legislature.

Certain items listed as open or standing appropriations have no amount indicated. These items relate to certain laws enacted by the 1965 Legislature. The lack of an amount indicates either that the appropriation is made in an open amount if certain events transpire and the nature of the event determines the amount of the appropriation or the appropriation is made in an open amount for the purposes of some matching funds and all details were not available at the time of preparing this chart to estimate accurately the amount required.

#### TABLE III 1965 DIRECT LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND, BY YEAR

.

,

.

.

(Banara

<u>Chapter</u>	1965	1966	1967	Biennial Total	Total Including Deficiencies
General Revenue Fund					
48 Adjutant General - Judgment	\$ 17,500.00	\$	\$	\$	\$ 17,500.00
57 Increase State Compensation Revolving Fund	350,000.00				350,000.00
58 Deficiencies	53,000.00				53,000.00
130 Drug Deficiencies - Welfare Institutions	106,000.00				106,000.00
142 Revisor of Statutes - Data Processing 189 Hog Cholera Indemnities	17,000.00		25,500.00	25,500.00	17,000.00 25,500.00
291 Registration of Animal Markers and Brands		5,000.00	3,000.00	8,000.00	8,000.00
304 Repair of Regimental Flags		30,000.00	.,	30,000.00	30,000.00
312 Moorhead Armory Alterations	120,000.00				120,000.00
350 Executive Council Flood Survey	50,000.00				50,000.00
366 National Guard Marker at Mexican Border		1,000.00		1,000.00	1,000.00
495 Claims - Special	34,187.00				34,187.00
521 Student Loan Deficiency 528 Parolee Revolving Loan Fund	10,890.83	3,000.00		3,000.00	10,890.83 3,000.00
579 Claims Commission Award	136,267.93	5,000.00		5,000.00	136,267.93
623 State Building Code		50,000,00		50,000.00	50,000.00
646 S.E.R.A. Employer's Contributions for		•		,	
Military Affairs Federal Personnel		54,730.10		54,730.10	54,730.10
653 Actuarial Fees Interim Commission	15,425.00				15,425.00
685 Statewide Planning Agency		25,000.00		25,000.00	25,000.00
702 Senior Citizens Band Expense at New York World's Fair	2,750,00				2 750 00
704 Business Development, Housing and Redevelopm		20,000.00		20,000.00	2,750.00 20,000.00
722 Purchase of Minnesota Reports		30,000.00		30,000.00	30,000.00
731 Special Election Costs		5,000.00		5,000.00	5,000.00
743 Increase Reassessment Revolving Fund		350,000.00		350,000.00	350,000.00
757 Miscellaneous Claims	108,020.38				108,020.38
762 Retirement Payments for Certain Widows of					
District Court Judges		87,000.00		87,000.00	87,000.00
807 Minnesota-Wisconsin Boundary Area Commission		25,000.00 62,837,582.00	70 171 253 00	25,000.00	25,000.00
809 Education 811 Uniform Commercial Code	15,904.31	02,037,302.00	70,171,353.00 43,500.00	133,008,935.00 43,500.00	133,024,839.31 43,500.00
817 Sales Data Service to Department of Taxation	1 I	10,000.00	43,500100	10,000.00	10,000.00
829 Building Repairs and Alterations	•	2,013,263.94		2,013,263.94	2,013,263.94
835 Long-Term Sheltered Workshop		15,000.00		15,000.00	15,000.00
869 Public Defender		130,000.00		130,000.00	130,000.00
886 Welfare and Corrections	825,002.84	76,149,589.00	77,512,327.00	153,661,916.00	154,486,918.84
888 Interim Commissions	60,000.00	15,000.00	15,000.00	30,000.00	90,000.00
901 State Departments	546,051.46	29,089,199.00	28,789,608.00	57,878,807.00	58,424,858.46
902 Semi-State Activities 903 Establish Teletypewriter Communications Netw	4,093.64	1,110,226.00 85,000.00	1,117,766.00 85,000.00	2,227,992.00 170,000.00	2,232,085.64 170,000.00
Total	2,472,093.39	172,140,590.04	177,763,054.00	349,903,644.04	352,375,737.43
Iotal	2,472,093.39	172,140,090.04	1/7,703,034.00		
Income Tax School Fund					
719 Additional Aids to School Districts with					
Decreasing Assessed Valuations		1,500,000.00		1,500,000.00	1,500,000.00
809 Education	384.06	180,606,360.00	189,409,444.00	370,015,804.00	370,016,188.06
884 Publishing and Distributing Withholding	( 500 00	0 000 00		0 000 00	15 500 00
Tax Tables	6,500.00	9,000.00	456,000.00	9,000.00	15,500.00 860,000.00
870 Special Teachers for Handicapped Children 886 Welfare - Corrections	67,548.01	404,000.00 7,785,706.00	8,059,251.00	860,000.00 15,844,957.00	15,912,505.01
901 State Departments	21,609.23	3,590,451.00	3,509,168.00	7,099,619.00	7,121,228.23
902 Semi-State Activities	,	50,000.00	50,000.00	100,000.00	100,000.00
Total	96.041.30	193,945,517,00	201,483,863,00	395,429,380,00	395,525,421,30
Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation Accou	nt				
809 Education		80,000.00	80,000.00	160,000.00	160,000.00
888 Interim Commissions	10,000.00				10,000.00
Total	10,000.00	80,000.00	80,000.00	160,000.00	170,000.00
Chata Alexanta Fund					
<u>State Airports Fund</u> 606 Airport Construction		2 112 500 00		2 112 500 00	2 112 500 00
901 State Departments		2,112,500.00 284,147.00	261,433.00	2,112,500.00 545,580.00	2,112,500.00 545,580.00
Total	······································	2,396,647.00	261,433.00	2,658,080.00	2,658,080.00
	·······	2,570,047,00	201,400.00	2,000,000,00	-,000,000,00
Game and Fish Fund					
275 Importation of Scandanavian Grouse		10,000.00		10,000.00	10,000.00
579 Claims Commission Awards	178.00	-			178.00
757 Miscellaneous Claims	7,981.86			11 (00 (0) 00	7,981.86
901 State Departments	62,464.18	5,962,596.00	5,458,010.00	11,420,606.00	11,483,070.18
Total	70,624.04	5,972,596.00	5,458,010.00	11,430,606.00	11,501,230.04

#### TABLE III (cont.) 1965 DIRECT LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND, BY YEAR

 A second sec second sec

All and a second

<u>Chapter</u> <u>Trunk Highway Fund</u>	1965	1966	1967	Biennial Total	Total Including Deficiencies
173 Correction of Pumping Station at Village	¢ 5 000 00	<b>^</b>	•	•	<b>A C C C C</b>
of Hawley 495 Claims - Special	\$ 5,000.00 41,000.00	\$	\$.	\$	\$ 5,000.00 41,000.00
579 Claims Commission Awards	18,573.07				18,573.07
757 Miscellaneous Claims	21,918.77				21,918.77
863 Highway Department		13,303,878.00	10,846,044.00	24,149,922.00	24,149,922.00
888 Interim Commissions	40,000.00				40,000.00
901 State Departments		18,911.00	19,224.00		38,135.00
Total	126,491.84	13,322,789.00	10,865,268.00	24,188,057.00	24,314,548.84
Highway User Tax Distribution Fund					
58 Deficiency 579 Claims Commission Awards	165,000.00				165,000.00
711 Driver Improvement Clinics	3,302.67	10,000.00	10,000.00	20,000.00	3,302.67
901 State Departments	8,661.21	1,956,184.00	3,105,781.00	5,061,965.00	20,000.00 5,070,626.21
Total	176,963.88	1,966,184.00	3,115,781.00	5,081,965.00	5,258,928.88
			0,110,101,00	5,001,705100	5,250,920.00
Consolidated Conservation Areas Fund					
757 Miscellaneous Claims	39,094.64				39,094.64
901 State Departments		26,000.00	75,000.00	101,000.00	101,000.00
Total	39,094.64	26,000.00	75,000.00	101,000.00	140,094.64
Wildlife Acquisition Fund					
		343 000 00	3/ 3 000 00	(8/ 000 00	(0) 000 00
901 State Departments	······	342,000.00	342,000.00	684,000.00	684,000.00
Rural Credits Fund					
901 State Departments		2,658.00	2,686.00	5,344.00	5,344.00
ι.					5,544,00
Soldiers Relief Fund					
902 Semi-State Activities		45,000.00	45,000.00	90,000.00	90,000.00
<u>Natural Resources Fund</u> 5 Minn. Outdoor Recreation Resources Comm.	25 000 00				
810 Natural Resources	25,000.00 7,690,199.00	100,000.00		100,000.00	25,000.00
888 Interim Commissions	15,000.00	100,000.00		100,000.00	7,790,199.00 15,000.00
901 State Departments	28,505.15				28,505.15
Total	7,758,704.15	100,000.00		100,000.00	7,858,704.15
				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Building Outlay Account					
143 Supplementary Appropriation for Speech -					
Music Building at Mankato State College	300,000.00				300,000.00
353 Air Condition Surgical Suite at Rochester State Hospital	225,000.00				225,000.00
769 Rehabilitation of Building at Glen Lake	40,000.00				40,000.00
829 Repair of Public Buildings	_ 55,000.00				55,000.00
Total	620,000.00				620,000.00
Unclaimed Court Deposits Account					
757 Miscellaneous Claims	4,000.00	• • · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			4,000.00
State Parks Development Account					
810 Natural Resources	405,000.00				405,000.00
901 State Departments	686.11				405,000.00
Total	405,686.11		**************************************		405,686.11
					+0,000,11
State Parks Maintenance and Operations Accou	int				
901 State Departments	10,430.59			······································	10,430.59
State Damka Manhama da statut Pund					
State Parks Working Capital Fund	a				A /-
901 State Departments	31,711.41				31,711.41
Livestock Weighing Account					
901 State Departments	6,390.23				6,390.23
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					0,090+20
Grand Totals Direct Appropriations	\$11,828,231.58	\$390,339,981.04	\$399,492,095.00	\$789,832,076.04	\$801,660,307.62
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			

- 73 -

TABLE IV									
COMPARISON OF FIVE MAJOR APPROPRIATION	BILLS								
1965 LEGISLATIVE SESSION									
DEFICIENCIES REPORTED SEPARATELY									

	GOVE	NOR'S RECOMMEN	DATION		HOUSE BILLS			SENATE BILLS			LAWS OF 1965	
	Gen'l. Rev.	Other		Gen'l. Rev.	Other		Gen'l. Rev.	Other		Gen'l. Rev.	Other	
T descent des	Fund	Funds	Total	Fund	Funds	Total	Fund	Funds	Total	Fund	Funds	Total
Education 1965-66	A ( ) ( (											
1965-66	\$ 65,854,661	\$181,168,938	\$247,023,599	\$ 62,218,361	\$178,294,326	\$240,512,687	\$ 62,867,780		\$256,838,702	\$ 62,837,582	\$180,686,360	\$243,523,942
	74,068,422	193,994,398	268,062,820	68,805,506	189,342,228	258,147,734	70,264,937	190,558,908	260,823,845	70,171,353	189,489,444	259,660,797
Biennial Total Deficiencies	15,067	375,163,336	515,086,419	131,023,867	367,636,554	498,660,421	133,132,717	384,529,830	517,662,547	133,008,935	370,175,804	503,184,739
Grand Total	139,938,150	4,467,467	4,482,535	101 000 000	3,000,000	3,000,000	15,067	1,220	16,288	15,904	384	16,288
Grand Lotal	139,938,150	379,630,803	519,568,954	131,023,867	370,636,554	501,660,421	133,147,784	384,531,050	517,678,835	133,024,839	370,176,188	503,201,027
Highways												
1965-66		14,432,216	14,432,216		14,043,276	14,043,276		12,748,857	12,748,857		13,303,878	13,303,878
1966-67		10,985,297	10,985,297		11,178,567	11,178,567		10,592,391	10,592,391		10,846,044	10,846,044
Biennial Total		25,417,513	25,417,513		25,221,843	25,221,843		23,341,248	23,341,248		24,149,922	24,149,922
Semi-State											, ,	
1965-66	1,139,922	95,000	1 226 022	1 104 077	D( F . 000	1 0/0 077	1 100					
1966-67	1,150,144	95,000	1,234,922 1,245,144	1,104,977	265,000	1,369,977	1,122,152	235,000	1,357,152	1,110,226	95,000	1,205,226
Biennial Total		190,000	2,480,066	$\frac{1,117,483}{2,222,460}$	<u>265,000</u> 530,000	$\frac{1,382,483}{2,752,460}$	1,127,703	235,000	1,362,703	1,117,766	95,000	1,212,766
Deficiencies	4,093	190,000	4,093	4,093	550,000	4,093	2,249,855 4,093	470,000	2,719,855	2,227,992	190,000	2,417,992
Grand Total	2,294,159	190,000	2,484,159	2,226,553	530,000	2,756,553	2,253,948	470,000	4,093	4,093	190,000	4,093 2,422,085
0	· · ·			, ,,	,	-,,	2,235,940	470,000	2,723,940	2,252,005	190,000	2,422,085
State Departments												
1965-66	29,503,195	12,507,525	42,010,720	28,102,933	11,387,611	39,490,544	28,756,662	12,089,355	40,846,017	29,089,199	12,182,947	41,272,146
1966-67	29,900,602	11,740,487	41,641,089	28,144,814	12,448,512	40,593,326	28,797,743	12,745,543	41,543,286	28,789,608	12,773,302	41,562,910
Biennial Total		24,248,012	83,651,809	56,247,747	23,836,123	80,083,870	57,554,405	24,834,898	82,389,303	57,878,807	24,956,249	82,835,056
Deficiencies	603,811	220,015	823,827	559,660	170,458	730,118	546,851	155,458	702,309	546,051	170,458	716,509
Grand Total	60,007,608	24,468,027	84,475,636	56,807,407	24,006,581	80,813,988	58,101,256	24,990,356	83,091,612	58,424,858	25,126,707	83,551,565
Welfare and Correc	tions											
1965-66	78,082,685	8,061,741	86,144,426	76,508,055	7,867,209	84,375,264	76,400,876	7,731,359	84,132,235	76,149,589	7,785,706	83,935,295
1966-67	82,371,147	8,378,037	90,749,184	79,133,330	8,254,877	87,388,207	77,286,844	7,918,602	85,205,446	77,512,327	8,059,251	85,571,578
Biennial Total	160,453,832	16,439,778	176,893,610	155,641,385	16,122,086	171,763,471	153,687,720	15,649,961	169,337,681	153,661,916	15,844,957	169,506,873
Deficiencies	2,301,479	67,548	2,369,027	797,229	67,548	864,777	825,002	67,548	892,550	825,002	67,548	892,550
Grand Total	162,755,311	16,507,326	179,262,637	156,438,614	16,189,634	172,628,248	154,512,722	15,717,509	170,230,231	154,486,918	15,912,505	170,399,423
Total - Five Major	Rille										, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
1965-66	174,580,463	216,265,420	390,845,883	167,934,326	011 057 (00	270 701 7/0	1/0 1/7 /70					
1966-67	187,490,315	225, 193, 219	412,683,534	177,201,133	211,857,422 221,489,184	379,791,748 398,690,317	169,147,470	226,775,493	395,922,963	169,186,596	214,053,891	383,240,487
Biennial Total		441,458,639	803,529,417	345,135,459	433,346,606		177,477,227	222,050,444	<u>399,527,671</u>	177,591,054	221,263,041	<u>398,854,095</u>
Deficiencies	2,924,452	4,755,031	7,679,483	1,360,983	433,346,606	778,482,065 4,598,989	346,624,697 <u>1,391,015</u>	448,825,937	795,450,634	346,777,650	435,316,932	782,094,582
Grand Total	364,995,230	446,213,670	811,208,900	346,496,442	436,584,612	783,081,054		224,226	1,615,242	1,391,052	238,390	1,629,442
			0.1,200,300	540,470,442	430,304,012	/03,001,054	348,015,712	449,050,163	797,065,876	348,168,702	435,555,322	783,724,024

.

.

The Governor's Recommendations are based on the printed budget.

The second se

.

0

Ł

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - FOUR MAJOR BILLS*	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
1965 Session	\$759,574,102	\$348,168,702	\$393,149,921	\$11,483,070	\$6,772,408
1963 Session	637,023,478	284,940,640	335,582,083	10,401,465	6,099,290
1961 Session	566, <u>9</u> 38,926	252,777,314	299,511,721	8,775,982	5,873,907
1959 Session	476,853,522	208,824,655	253,573,633	8,188,966	6,266,266
1957 Session	405,366,555	196,411,830	190,966,953	8,219,475	9,768,294
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963	122,550,624	63,228,062	57,567,838	1,081,605	673,118
<b>% Increase</b> 1965 over 1963	19.2%	22.2%	17.2%	10.4%	11.0%
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1961	192,635,176	95,391,388	93,638,200	2,707,088	898,501
<b>% I</b> ncrease 1965 over 1961	34.0%	37.7%	31.3%	30.8%	15.3%
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1959	282,720,580	139,344,047	139,576,288	3,294,104	506,142
% Increase 1965 over 1959	59.3%	66.7%	55.0%	40.2%	8.1%
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1957	354,207,547	151,756,872	202,182,968	3,263,595	(2,995,886)
<b>% Increase</b> 1965 over 1957	87.4%	77.3%	105.9%	39.7%	(30.7%)
BIENNIAL CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961	70,084,552	32,163,326	36,070,362	1,625,483	225,383
<b>% I</b> ncrease 1963 over 1961	12.4%	12.7%	12.0%	18.5%	3.8%
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959	90,085,404	43,952,659	45,938,088	587,016	(392,359)
<b>% Increase</b> 1961 over 1959	18.9%	21.0%	18.1%	7.2%	(6.3%)
Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957	71,486,967	12,412,825	62,606,680	(30,509)	(3,502,028)
<b>% Increase</b> 1959 over 1957	17.6%	6.3%	32.8%	(.4%)	(35.9%)

 TABLE V

 COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS
 - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1957 THROUGH 1965

 Deficiencies Included

1957 enacted appropriations adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

\*Excludes direct appropriation to the Department of Highways in the 1961, 1963 and 1965 Sessions. In prior years no direct appropriations were made to this department.

EDUCATION	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
1965 Session	\$503,201,027	\$133,024,839	\$370,016,188		\$160,000
1963 Session	414,713,296	99,223,046	315,102,266		387,984
1961 Session	366,680,732	82,120,807	284,235,924		324,000
1959 Session	292,729,206	53,107,330	239,321,876		300,000
1957 Session	236,522,499	57,722,916	178,539,583		260,000
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963	88,487,731	33,801,793	54,913,922		(227,984)
% Increase 1965 over 1963	21.3%	34.1%	17.4%		(58.8%)
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1961	136,520,295	50,904,032	85,780,264		(164,000)
% Increase 1965 over 1961	37.2%	62.0%	30.2%		(50.6%)
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1959	210,471,821	79,917,509	130,694,312		(140,000)
<b>% Increase</b> 1965 over 1959	71.9%	150.5%	54.6%		(46.7%)
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1957	266,678,528	75,301,923	191,476,605		(100,000)
% Increase 1965 over 1957	112.7%	130.5%	107.2%		(38.5%)
BIENNIAL CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961	48,032,564	17,102,239	30,866,342		63,984
% Increase 1963 over 1961	13.1%	20.8%	10.9%		19.7%
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959	73,951,526	29,013,477	44,914,048		24,000
<b>% Increase</b> 1961 over 1959	25.3%	54.6%	18.8%		8.0%
Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957	56,206,707	(4,615,586)	60,782,293		40,000
% Increase 1959 over 1957	23.8%	(8.0%)	34.0%		15.4%

TABLE VICOMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS- LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1957 THROUGH 1965Deficiencies Included

1957 enacted appropriations adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

1

76 I.

	Deficienci	es Included			
SEMI-STATE	Total Bill	General <u>Revenue</u>	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other <u>Funds</u>
1965 Session	\$2,422,085	\$2,232,085	\$100,000	\$ -0-	\$ 90,000
1963 Session	2,769,760	2,289,760	100,000	280,000	100,000
1961 Session	2,260,968	1,770,968	100,000	280,000	110,000
1959 Session	2,493,630	1,993,630	100,000	280,000	120,000
1957 Session	2,491,497	1,880,478	100,000	372,700	138,318
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963	(347,675)	(57,675)	-	(280,000)	(10,000)
<b>% Increase 1965 over 1963</b>	(12.6%)	(2.5%)	-	-	(10.0%)
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1961	161,117	461,117	_	(280,000)	(20,000)
<b>% Increase 1965 over 1961</b>	7.1%	26.0%	-	-	(18.2%)
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1959	(71,545)	238,455	-	(280,000)	(30,000)
<b>% I</b> ncrease 1965 over 1959	(2.9%)	12.0%	-	-	(25.0%)
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1957	(69,412)	351,607	_	(372,700)	(48,318)
<b>% I</b> ncrease 1965 over 1957	(2.8%)	18.7%	. –	-	(34.9%)
BIENNIAL CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961	508,792	518,792	-	-	(10,000)
<b>% I</b> ncrease 1963 over 1961	22.5%	29.3%	-		(9.1%)
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959	(232,662)	(222,662)	-	_	(10,000)
<b>% I</b> ncrease 1961 over 1959	(9.3%)	(11.2%)	-	-	(8.3%)
Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957	2,133	113,152	_	(92,700)	(18,318)
% Increase 1959 over 1957	. 1%	6.0%	-	(24.9%)	(13.2%)

TABLE VII <u>COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS</u> - <u>LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1957 THROUGH 1965</u> <u>Deficiencies Included</u>

zionizanen arrierariariariar

NOTE: There are slight differences in totals due to dropping the "cents" column.

1957 enacted appropriations adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

- 77 -

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1957 THROUGH 1965							
	Deficienc	cies Included					
	Total	General	Income Tax	Game and	All Other		
STATE DEPARTMENTS	<u> </u>	Revenue	School Fund	Fish Fund	Funds		
1965 Session	\$83,551,565	\$58,424,858	\$7,121,228	\$11,483,070	\$6,522,408		
1963 Session	74,765,322	52,618,437	6,414,114	10,121,465	5,611,306		
1961 Session	67,324,858	48,314,036	5,074,932	8,495,982	5,439,907		
1959 Session	63,204,863	44,922,406	4,877,225	7,908,966	5,496,266		
1957 Session	59,094,030	39,292,378	4,301,398	7,846,775	7,653,478		
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES					· • • • • • • • • • • •		
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963	8,786,243	5,806,421	707,114	1,361,605	911,102		
<b>% Increase 1965 over 1963</b>	11.8%	11.0%	11.0%	13.5%	16.2%		
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1961	16,226,707	10,110,822	2,046,296				
% Increase 1965 over 1961	24.1%	20.9%	40.3%	2,987,088	1,082,501		
				35.2%	19.9%		
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1959	20,346,702	13,502,452	2,244,003	3,574,104	1,026,142		
% Increase 1965 over 1959	32.2%	30.1%	46.0%	45.2%	18.7%		
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1957	24,457,535	19,132,480	2,819,830	3,636,295	(1,131,070)		
% Increase 1965 over 1957	41.4%	48.7%	65.6%	46.3%	(14.8%)		
BIENNIAL CHANGES			•				
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961	7 440 464	1 201 101	1 000 100				
% Increase 1963 over 1961	7,440,464	4,304,401	1,339,182	1,625,483	171,399		
	11.1%	8.9%	26.4%	19.1%	3.2%		
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959	4,119,995	3,391,630	197,707	587,016	(56,359)		
% Increase 1961 over 1959	6.5%	7.5%	4.1%	7.4%	(1.0%)		
Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957	4,110,833	5,630,028	575,827	62,191	(2 157 212)		
% Increase 1959 over 1957	7.0%	14.3%	13.4%	.8%	(2, 157, 212)		
		±¬¬ ₀ <b>√ /</b> ●	LJ 0 4 /0	₀ O /₀	(28.2%)		

TABLE VIII

1957 enacted appropriation adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

1957 through 1959 enacted appropriations adjusted for comparability by transfer of appropriations for Youth Conservation Commission, Board of Parole, Training School for Boys and Home School for Girls to Welfare - Corrections bills.

1963 enacted appropriation includes \$1,920,864 of game and fish funds that were handled by open appropriation in previous sessions and therefore not included in the appropriation bills from 1957 through 1961.

1965 enacted appropriation includes \$907,482 from general revenue fund that were previously financed by open appropriations from dedicated funds and therefore not included in the appropriation bills from 1957 through 1963.

- 78 -

COMPANE TO ON

	Deficienc	ies Included			
WELFARE AND CORRECTIONS	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
1965 Session	\$170,399,423	\$154,486,918	\$15,912,505	_	\$ -
1963 Session	144,775,099	130,809,396	13,965,702	-	· _
1961 Session	130,672,366	120,571,501	10,100,865	-	-
1959 Session	118,425,822	108,801,290	9,274,532	-	350,000
1957 Session	107,258,529	97,516,058	8,025,972	-	1,716,498
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963	25,624,324	23,677,522	1,946,803		_
% Increase 1965 over 1961	17.7%	18.1%	13.9%		-
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1961	39,727,057	33,915,417	5,811,640		-
<b>% Increase</b> 1965 over 1961	30.4%	28.1%	57.5%		-
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1959	51,973,601	45,685,628	6,637,973		(350,000)
<b>% Increase</b> 1965 over 1959	43.9%	42.0%	71.6%		-
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1957	63,140,894	56,970,860	7,886,533		(1,716,498)
<b>% Increase</b> 1965 over 1957	58.9%	58.4%	98.3%		-
BIENNIAL INCREASES					
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961	14,102,733	10,237,895	3,864,837		
<b>% Increase</b> 1963 over 1961	10.8%	8.5%	38.3%		-
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959	12,246,544	11,770,211	826,333		(350,000)
<b>% I</b> ncrease 1961 over 1959	10.3%	10.8%	8.9%		-
Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957	11,167,293	11,285,232	1,248,560		(1,366,498)
<b>% Increase</b> 1959 over 1957	10.4%	11.6%	15.5%		(79.6%)

TABLE IX <u>COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS</u> - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1957 THROUGH 1965 Deficiencies Included

1957 enacted appropriations adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

1957 through 1959 enacted appropriations adjusted for comparability by transfer of appropriations for Youth Conservation Commission, Board of Parole, Training School for Boys and Home School for Girls from State Department bills.

- 79

#### 1

# TABLE XAPPROPRIATIONS FOR EDUCATION (OTHER THAN UNIVERSITYAND STATE COLLEGES) 1940 THROUGH 1967DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEAR

Fiscal Year	Department of Education	Education Aids <sup>a</sup>	Scholarships, Aids to Libraries and Junior Colleges	Total
1940	\$ 100,000	\$ 8,073,500	\$	\$ 8,173,500
1941	100,101 <sup>b</sup>	8,373,500		8,473,601
1942	108,500	8,422,500		8,531,000
1943	103,542 <sup>b</sup>	8,607,500		8,711,042
1944	162,010	9,198,000		9,360,010
1945	152,010	9,198,000		9,350,010
1946	208,220	9,185,000		9,393,220
1947	222,291 <sup>b</sup>	11,540,000		11,762,291
1948 <sup>c</sup>	382,504	24,164,600		24,547,104
1949	369,321 <sup>b</sup>	25,890,850		26,260,171
1950	763,894 <sup>d</sup>	39,378,300		40,142,194
1951	744,258	40,290,100		41,034,358
1952	893,049	51,680,600		52,573,649
1953	891,966	63,897,300		64,789,266
1954	948,589	62,899,600		63,848,189
1955	950,153	65,484,000		66,434,153
1956	1,175,505	66,551,306		67,726,811
1957	1,287,342 <sup>b</sup>	76,903,765 <sup>0</sup>		78,191,107
1958	1,501,936	91,714,387 <sup>b</sup>	627,500	93,843,823
1959	1,542,463	95,094,955 <sup>b</sup>	730,000	97,367,418
1960	1,718,222	107,782,646 <sup>b</sup>	812,500	110,313,368
1961	1,766,349	114,030,251 <sup>b</sup>	877,500	116,674,100
1962	2,192,975	126,154,000	1,114,800	129,461,775
1963	2,020,802	135,165,649 <sup>b</sup>	1,299,065 <sup>b</sup>	138,485,516
1964	2,421,920	151,083,000	1,652,000	155,156,920
1965	2,415,697	159,083,000	2,,508,000	164,006,697
1966	2,558,360	178,031,000	3,547,862	184,137,222
1967	2,594,944	186,803,000	4,461,772	193,859,716

(a) Excludes: Aid to Common School Districts, Tuition and Transportation Aid-Schools of Agriculture, Census Aid and Endowment Apportionment.

(b) Includes deficiency appropriations, except employees' compensation.

- (c) Beginning in 1948, appropriations for certain activities which had been classed as part of school aids were made a part of the departmental appropriation.
- (d) Includes Community School Lunch Appropriation from 1950 on.

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESOTA

- 80 -

(Er	al Year nding e 30th)	Maintenance and Improvements	Research & Extension <sup>a</sup> (including special hospitals)	Care of Indigent Patients in U. Hosp. (Shared: 놏 County, 놏 State)	National Defense Student Loan Program	Sub-Total of All Except Bldg. Appropriations	Building Projects	Grand Total
	933	\$ 3,275,000	\$ 111,000	\$ 330,000		\$ 3,716,000	\$ None	\$ 3,716,000
	934	2,800,000	77,500	330,000		3,207,500	10,000	3,217,500
	935	2,800,000	77,500	330,000		3,207,500	None	3,207,500
	936	3,100,000	90,500	370,000		3,560,500	173,000	3,733,500
	937	3,100,000	121,500 <sup>b</sup>	370,000		3,591,500		3,591,500
	938	3,500,000	218,500	370,000		4,088,500	775,000	4,863,500
	939	3,500,000	166,000	370,000		4,036,000		4,036,000
	940	3,540,000	165,000	400,000		4,105,000	429,500	4,534,500
	941	3,540,000	165,000	400,000		4,105,000		4,105,000
	942	3,727,910	350,000	400,000		4,477,910	346,000	4,823,910
	943	3,734,000	352,700 <sup>b</sup>	400,000		4,486,700		4,486,700
	944	3,890,000	425,575	490,000		4,805,575	1,175,000	5,980,575
	945	3,890,000	425,575	490,000		4,805,575		4,805,575
	946	3,825,000	540,000	620,000		4,985,000	1,156,600	6,141,600
	947	4,825,000	540,000	620,000		5,985,000		5,985,000
	948	8,087,248	714,000	908,000		9,709,248	7,683,000	17,392,248
	949	8,093,159 <sup>b</sup>	720,232 <sup>b</sup>	908,000		9,721,392		9,721,392
15	950c	12,252,019	989,439 <sup>d</sup>	1,506,546		14,748,004	14,214,000	28,962,004
	951	12,200,834	1,193,435 <sup>d</sup>	1,499,070		14,893,339		14,893,339
-	952	14,136,654	1,174,456 <sup>d</sup>	2,191,728		17,502,838	2,132,690	19,635,528
	953	14,236,654	1,293,192 <sup>b</sup> & d	2,249,079 <sup>b</sup>		17,778,925		17,778,925
	954	14,847,000	1,513,983 <sup>d</sup>	2,129,690		18,490,673	4,056,000	22,546,673
	955	14,929,000	2,007,416 <sup>b</sup> & d	2,568,833 <sup>b</sup>		19,505,249		19,505,249
	956	15,878,500	2,152,666 <sup>d</sup>	2,200,000		20,231,166	6,600,000	26,831,166
	957	15,878,500	2,157,666 <sup>d</sup>	2,250,000		20,286,166		20,286,166
	958	14,542,031 <sup>e</sup>	2,672,276	2,836,236		20,050,543	16,530,518	36,581,061
	959	18,614,386 <sup>e</sup>	2,538,641	2,922,138		24,075,165		24,075,165
	960	19,179,470 <sup>1</sup>	3,259,138	3,071,714		25,510,322	14,457,150	39,967,472
	961	20,817,239	3,341,007	3,349,244 <sup>b</sup>		27,507,490		27,507,490
	962	24,189,371 <sup>8</sup>	3,777,931	3,896,896		31,864,198	7,836,747	39,700,945
	963	25,023,542	3,847,428	4,141,224		33,012,194		33,012,194
	964	27,653,330	4,197,011	4,505,578		36,355,919	12,483,700	48,839,619
	965	30,800,157 <sub>h</sub>	4,481,386	4,813,078		40,094,621		40,094,621
	966	36,558,454 <sup>n</sup>	5,308,932	4,660,000	\$121,888	46,649,274	15,820,656 <sup>i</sup>	62,469,930
19	967	41,064,554	5,389,028	5,046,748	121,888	51,622,218		51,622,218

TABLE XI APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA FOR FISCAL YEARS 1933 THROUGH 1967 DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

(a) Agricultural Extension Agents not under the University until fiscal 1942, and appropriations therefor for prior years are excluded.

(b) Includes deficiency appropriation.

(c) Duluth T. C. was made a branch of the University by the 1947 Legislature, and 1950 was the first year funds were appropriated directly to the University for the Duluth Branch.

(d) Does not include tuition and transportation aid for students at Schools of Agriculture.

(e) The University's share of the Occupation Tax on Iron Ore was used for Maintenance and Improvements beginning in 1958. The 1957 "Windfall" was added to fiscal year 1958 accounting for the difference in comparison with fiscal 1959.

(f) Includes \$100,000 for replacement of supplies and equipment destroyed by fire in the Chemistry Building.

(g) Appropriations for the University Branch at Morris are included in 1962 and thereafter.

(h) Appropriations for the Agricultural and Technical Institute at Crookston are included in 1966 and thereafter.

(i) Buildings authorized totaled \$21,869,332 with appropriations from state funds of \$15,820,656.

	Five State Co	lleges	Training Program	State	National Defense	Contingent Fund, Campus Planning,	
Fiscal		Repairs &	Handicapped	College	Student Loan	Liaison Committee	
<u>Year</u>	& Equipment	Betterments <sup>a</sup>	Children	Board	Program	& Special Projects	Grand Total
1942	\$ 854,850	\$ 39,175	\$	\$ 2,000	\$	\$	\$ 896,025
1943	928,850 <sup>b</sup>	29,350		2,000			960,200
1944	810,890	30,000		1,200			842,090
1945	890,241	29,200		1,200			920,641
1946	951,415	49,825		6,100			1,007,340
1947	1,020,371	56,200		6,300			1,082,871
1948	1,220,782	101,433		7,500			1,329,715
1949	1,297,347 <sup>b</sup>	51,050	N	7,788 <sup>b</sup>			1,356,185
1950	2,062,096	169,400		10,436			2,241,932
1951	2,072,986	151,350		10,508			2,234,844
1952	2,581,917	129,810		11,309			2,723,036
1953	2,669,009	89,800		11,123			2,769,932
1954	2,808,257	134,875		10,975			2,954,107
1955	2,900,050 <sup>b</sup>	75,060		11,047			2,986,157
1956	2,938,975	148,874		с			3,087,849
1957	3,047,980	71,800					3,119,780
1 <b>9</b> 58	4,260,873	77,500	46,400			100,000	4,484,773
1959	4,912,629	77,500	47,000		22,835		5,059,964
1960	5,225,869	80,000	50,500			92,500	5,448,869
1961	6,024,141	80,000	52,500			*** *** ***	6,156,641
1962	7,032,463	80,000	72,250		75,000	97,000	7,356,713
1963	7,588,121	80,000	72,750		75,000	40 40 GB	7,815,871
1964	8,586,261	80,000	82,500		120,000	200,630	9,069,391
1965	9,532,834	80,000	82,500		143,000	26,400	9,864,734
1966	11,885,208	85,000	97,500		174,738	255,000	12,497,446
1967	13,494,445	85,000	97,500		206,918	30,000	13,913,863

TABLE XII APPROPRIATIONS FOR MINNESOTA STATE COLLEGES 1942 THROUGH 1967 DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS (The 5 colleges include Bemidji, Mankato, Moorhead, St. Cloud and Winona)

(a) Including special projects prior to 1958 but not major building appropriations. Beginning in 1958 the special projects are included in the Building Bill

(b) Including deficiency appropriations -- however, deficiency appropriations for employees' compensation for injuries have not been included.

(c) The expenses of the State College Board are included with the appropriation to the colleges. The 1955 Legislature made a single appropriation to the Board for the expenses of the Board and the five colleges. In previous years appropriations were made to the individual colleges.

- 82

ŧ

Year	Department of Public Welfare <sup>a</sup>	Department of Corrections	Mental Hospitals	Children's Treatment Center	Correctional Youth	Institutions Adult	Minn. Residential Treatment Center	Other Institutions <sup>b</sup>	Total
1940	\$ 501,430	\$	\$ 2,353,950	\$ 90,000	\$ 352,175	\$ 755,500	\$	\$ 1,960,300	\$ 6,013,355
1941	527,226		2,281,000	90,000	333,675	660,700		1,842,050	5,734,651
1942	128,904		2,362,821	75,000	345,750	865,200		1,851,350	5,629,025
1943	157,666		2,689,542	75,000	339,600	854,500		1,855,545	5,971,853
1944	308,200		3,149,221		425,901	869,834		2,335,999	7,089,155
1945	322,235		3,130,275		432,844	882,742		2,373,786	7,141,882
1946	419,226		3,590,821	62,000	492,209	788,034		2,739,409	8,091,699
1947	409,261		4,070,727	50,000	536,862	842,033		3,129,477	9,038,360
1948	262,051		5,140,112	109,679	695,603	1,650,442		4,100,375	11,958,262
1949	274,634		5,626,179	110,087	712,242	1,623,982		4,237,908	12,585,032
1950	1,067,268		8,780,815	90,000	863,661	1,903,921		5,697,326	18,402,991
1951	1,103,977		9,749,175	90,500	862,301	1,864,663		5,972,220	19,642,836
1952	1,117,252		12,581,368	83,850	784,703 <sup>c</sup>	2,292,068		7,012,965	23,872,206
1953	1,140,123		12,734,186	77,400	790,331	2,255,896		7,298,369	24,296,305
1954	889,657		12,909,517	49,530	905,180	2,307,038		7,600,508	24,661,430
1955	865,221		12,949,879	47,831	899,926	2,361,139		7,554,227	24,678,223
1956	1,289,596		12,880,833	55,541	1,059,158	2,657,272		7,563,196	25,505,596
1957	1,297,466		13,057,796	50,694	1,089,810	2,663,808		7,679,273	25,838,847
1958	1,436,950		15,006,674	79,000	1,275,871	3,045,213		8,985,202	29,828,910
1959	1,425,315		15,678,566	79,054	1,310,519	3,152,297		10,170,818	31,816,569
1960 <sup>d</sup>	1,733,103		17,073,903	172,598	1,734,496	3,519,718		11,794,412	36,028,230
1961	1,786,182		17,283,445	238,800	1,720,159	3,556,710		12,266,775	36,852,071
1962 ·	2,087,820	1,098,642	18,466,627	264,679	1,942,147	3,911,385		14,487,206	42,258,506
1963	2,175,683	1,114,817	18,601,473	272,508	1,952,104	3,884,739		15,822,447	42,258,508
1964	2,510,680	1,264,214	19,325,960		2,158,430	4,148,151	1,174,939	17,725,535	
1965	2,632,642	1,272,135	19,369,330		2,172,179	4,150,073	1,633,980	18,314,486	48,307,909
1966	3,003,147	1,448,065	20,212,761		2,384,888	4,383,123	1,903,831		49,544,829
1967	3,050,551	1,541,316	20,271,896		2,471,954	4,378,861	1,905,031	19,459,980 20,454,973	52,795,795 54,114,578

#### TABLE XIII APPROPRIATIONS FOR STATE INSTITUTIONS 1940 THROUGH 1967 DEFICIENCIES AND EMPLOYEES COMPENSATION INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

(a) Department of Welfare includes administration of the various aid programs as well as the institutions.

(b) Includes institutions for the mentally deficient, epileptic, blind, deaf, tubercular, crippled children, and nursing homes.

(c) The institutions for boys and girls were placed under Youth Conservation Commission in 1952.

в,

(d) Commencing in 1960, all biennial appropriations are divided equally between years. Prior to 1950 only the contingent appropriation was divided.

- 83 -

·	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	Medical	Aid to		Vocational	Aid to	Div. of	Country Pro 1						
Fiscal	Old Age	Assistance	Dependent	Aid to	Rehab. of	County	Soc. Welfare	County Prob. Services	Children Under	Public	Room Idea and com	<b>T7</b> - 4		
Year	Assistance	to the Aged	Children	Blind	Blind	Sanatoria	Admin.	Reimbursement		Relief	Equalization of Costs	Veterans' Relief	Aid to Disabled	Total
								the Line of Lenetre	oddraransnip	Reillei	01 00815	Reiter	Disabled	Total
1940	\$ 5,300,000	\$	\$1,200,000	\$ 70,000	\$	\$400,000	\$220,000 <sup>a</sup>	\$	\$	\$5,500,000 <sup>c</sup>	\$	\$ 25,000	\$	\$12,715,000
1941	5,400,000 <sup>b</sup>		900,000	150,000 <sup>b</sup>		425,000	220,000 <sup>a</sup>			3,250,000		25,000		10,370,000
1942	5,660,000		675,000	172,600		400,000	379,880	~		4,750,000c				12,037,480
1943	5,810,000		925,000	181,600 <sup>b</sup>		400,000	436,380			4,250,000				12,002,980
1944	6,750,000		776,000	211,000		405,000	204,800		95,000	d		625,000		9,066,800
1945	7,000,000		900,000	230,000		420,000	259,800		95,000	1,500,000		625,000		11,029,800
1946	6,855,000		869,500	234,500		270,000	145,000		95,000	660,000		450,000		9,579,000
1947	9,100,000		1,570,000	272,500		370,000	343,000		95,000	660,000		500,000		12,910,500
1948	8,655,724		1,459,000	347,945	13,685	325,000	364,616		150,000	720,000	~~-	500,000		12,535,970
1949	9,451,135		1,651,900	363,683	13,685	325,000	371,150		150,000	720,000		500,000		
1950	9,515,430		2,503,703	396,108	37,115	521,000	387,225		310,000	650,000		,		13,546,553
1951	10,311,975		2,866,886	433,941	37,115	521,000	395,015		320,000	650,000	750,000	600,000		15,670,581
1952	12,300,203		2,779,850	511,850	33,350	535,000	409,046		370,000	•	750,000	600,000		16,885,932
ı 1953	13,104,913		3,005,285	829,000	34,650	547,000	414,631		370,000	650,000	750,000	500,000		18,839,299
∞ 1954	11,617,468		2,598,945	568,951	41,495	614,000	403,700		380,000	650,000	750,000	500,000		20,205,479
1955	12,207,113 <sup>b</sup>		2,727,448 <sup>b</sup>	522,171	41,250	639,000				600,000	650,000	500,000	24,000	17,998,560
1956	13,043,685		2,968,026	381,524	57,500	•	389,719		389,000	600,000	650,000	500,000	36,000	18,701,701
1957	13,232,166		3,193,307	422,432	71,000	575,000			387,500	500,000	700,000	450,000	306,748	19,369,983
1958	13,024,587		3,606,714	422,432		909,000			387,500	500,000	700,000	500,000 <sup>b</sup>	325,928	20,241,333
1959	13,644,851		4,206,225 <sup>b</sup>	408,281	60,000	823,500			400,000	500,000	975,000	450,000	291,733	20,537,795
1960	12,994,000		• •	•	65,000	823,500			410,000	510,000 <sup>b</sup>	1,150,000 <sup>b</sup>	600,000 <sup>b</sup>	361,883	22,203,974
1961	13,963,000		4,461,000 4,826,000	341,000	60,000	625,000		200,000	490,079	500,000	1,175,000	525,000	274,500	21,645,579
1962	11,500,000			349,500	60,000	600,000		205,000	649,241 <sup>f</sup>	500,000	1,300,000	500,000	275,000	23,227,741
1963	12,800,000		5,970,000	400,000	60,000	500,000		172,131	600,000	500,000	1,150,000	575,000	328,000	21,755,131
1964	11,990,000		6,650,000	475,000	60,000	500,000		185,131 <sup>b</sup>	732,433 <sup>f</sup>	500,000	1,250,000	550,000	358,000	24,060,564
1965			7,390,000	438,000	60,000	100,000		198,000	719,880	500,000	1,150,000	575,000	311,000	23,431,880
	6,100,000	6,900,000 (4,262,000)	7,610,000	469,000	60,000	95,000		200,000	1,001,613f	500,000	1,250,000	550,000	328,000	25,063,613
1966	5,184,000	(7,680,000) <sup>1</sup>	10,000,000	312,500	90,000	50,000		242,000	685,000	i	900,000	-	1,271,500	31,252,000
1967	3,515,000	14,369,000	10,600,000	176,000	90,000	40,000		242,000	685,000		925,000	575,000	1,127,500	32,344,500

TABLE XIV APPROPRIATIONS FOR WELFARE AND CORRECTIONS ACTIVITIES 1940-67 DEFICIENCY APPROPRIATIONS INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

(a) To Board of Control and State Relief Agency which administered public assistance prior to creation of Division of Social Welfare.

(b) Includes deficiency appropriation.

(c) Balances of funds for work projects to be available for second year of biennium.

(d) Balance from previous biennium reappropriated.

(e) Included in table of Institution Appropriations.

(f) Includes in capte of institution appropriations.
 (f) Includes \$130,541 deficiency appropriation in 1961, \$82,433 in 1963 and \$202,773 in 1965 for Indian relief in Becker County.
 (g) Medical Assistance to the Aged scheduled to be replaced January 1, 1966 by Medical Assistance to the Needy.

Þ

(b) Appropriation for 1966 and following year is for the Medical Assistance to the Needy Program.
 (i) No appropriation made. An appropriation of \$75,000 per year was made to pay a portion of the cost of distributing surplus commodities to the counties.

		State		Welfare and	
Year	Semi-State	Departments	Education	Corrections	Total
1942	\$ 747,445.00	\$ 8,602,238.07	\$ 13,818,935.00	\$13,284,765.00	\$ 36,453,383.07
1943	677,345.00	8,743,319.99	13,885,700.00	13,356,681.00	36,663,045.99
1944	686,316.00	9,878,118.50	15,166,451.00	15,530,954.22	41,261,839.72
1945	685,676.00	10,170,752.00	15,162,726.50	16,007,034.85	42,026,189.35
1946	666,342.05	11,237,846.71	15,584,892.00	16,760,698.02	44,249,778.78
1947	730,083.33	13,405,562.71	19,033,840.00	19,801,763.27	52,971,249.31
1 <b>9</b> 48	963,298.00	16,101,440.94	35,852,236.00	23,349,232.00	76,266,206.94
1949	926,142.52	16,355,336.94	37,584,106.00	24,194,618.00	79,060,203.46
1950	992,904.00	17,725,366.00	57,198,130.00	34,073,572.00	109,989,972.00
1951	958,236.00	18,166,881.00	58,228,541.00	36,506,645.00	113,860,303.00
1952	1,097,235.00	21,563,306.00	72,904,523.00	41,876,802.00	137,441,866.00
1953	1,053,587.00	21,869,867.00	75,347,036.00	43,561,283.00	141,831,773.00
1954	1,151,597.00	23,142,728.00	85,364,969.00	41,809,951.46	151,469,245.46
1955	1,090,561.00	22,996,198.00	88,911,290.00	41,532,589.55	154,530,638.55
1956	1,077,638.00	24,956,182.00	91,273,326.00	43,691,331.00	160,998,477.00
1957	1,066,489.00	24,224,723.00	93,349,553.00	44,219,201.00	162,859,966.00
1958	1,165,944.00	30,759,451.00	109,973,289.00	48,749,504.00	190,648,188.00
1959	1,199,838.00	29,407,136.00	116,897,379.00	51,154,068.00	198,658,421.00
1960	1,222,649.00	34,239,663.00	133,853,539.69	55,414,313.00	224,730,164.69
1961	1,230,032.00	33,480,467.00	140,613,231.00	57,110,844.00	232,434,574.00
1962	1,128,577.00	34,316,054.00	168,782,686.00	63,693,627.00	267,920,944.00
1963	1,128,090.00	32,273,380.00	179,158,567.00	66,634,931.00	279,194,968.00
1964	1,359,804.00	37,144,009.00	200,587,230.00	71,536,039.00	310,627,082.00
1965	1,359,956.00	36,826,642.00	213,971,052.00	72,794,642.00	324,952,292.00
1966	1,205,226.00	41,272,146.00	243,523,942.00	83,935,295.00	369,936,609.00
1967	1,212,766.00	41,562,910.00	259,660,797.00	85,571,578.00	388,008,051.00

TABLE XVTOTAL APPROPRIATION BILLS(DOES NOT INCLUDE DEFICIENCY APPROPRIATIONS)

Institutions were in separate appropriation act through 1955. The Department of Corrections was added in 1961. The amounts have been combined for comparative purposes.

ı 85

8

### TABLE XVI

## STATE BONDS AUTHORIZED BY THE 1963 LEGISLATURE

Chapter Number		
1	Reauthorization of the 1961 State Building Bill	\$29,361,000
601	Maximum Effort School Aid Refunding existing certificates of indebtedness Additional funds for debt service and capital loans	3,900,000 16,000,000
677	Refunding certain existing certificates of indebtedness	40,700,000
791	Aeronautics Refunding existing aeronautics certificates of indebtedness Additional funds for airport purposes	4,526,900 2,073,100
839	1963 State Building Bill TOTAL	<u>33,990,000</u> \$130,551,000
	STATE BONDS AUTHORIZED BY THE 1965 LEGISLATURE	
532	Employment Security Building	\$ 3,000,000
875	Maximum Effort School Aid (Additional funds for debt service and capital loans)	10,400,000
882	1965 Building Bill	54,790,000
892	Purchase Baudette Bridge	1,400,000
	TOTAL	\$69,590,000

		$\mathbf{T}_{\mathbf{z}}$	ABLE XVII		
	Su	unmaı	ty Compariso	<b>7</b> 5	
			of		
Senate,	House	and	Conference	Building	Bills
			1965-67		

.

\$

BIT STORE STORE

enviter and the second second second

æ

•

			te					Hous	se		Conference					
	C 1	Reappro-	0.1				<b>a</b> 1	Reappro-					Reappro-			
	General Revenue	priated Balances	Other Funds	New Borrowing		Total	General Revenue	priated Balances	Other Funds	New Borrowing	Total	General Revenue	priated Balances	Other Funds	New Borrowing	Total
Mental Institutions	110101100		<u>- anao</u>	DOLLOW LINE		10001	<u>Ac venue</u>	Datances	<u>runos</u>	DOLLOWINE	TOLAL	Revenue	Derances	runes	BOLLOWINE	10187
Anoka	\$ 25,000			\$ 829,000	¢	854,000	\$ 25,000			\$ 829,000	\$ 854,000	\$ 25,000			\$ 829,000	\$ 854,000
Fergus Falls	50,000			100,000	Ŷ	150,000	50,000			100,000	150,000	50,000			100,000	150,000
Hastings	55,000			15,000		15,000	50,000			2,855,000	2,855,000	50,000			1,800,000	1,800,000
Moose Lake	60,500			126,500		187,000	50,500			136,500	187,000	50,500			1,800,000	1,800,000
Rochester	113,800			75,000		188,800	30,800			162,000	192,800	113,800			75,000	188,800
St. Peter	31,300			6,000		37,300		\$114,280		102,000	151,580	31,300	\$114,280		6,000	151,580
Security Hospital	51,500			0,000		27,300	51,000	<b>4</b> 114,200		550,000	601,000	51,000	9114,200		0,000	51,000
Willmar	6,000			105,000		111,000	6,000			105,000	111,000	6,000			105,000	111,000
Sub-Total	286,600	······		1,256,500	1	,543,100	250,600	114,280		4,737,500	5,102,380	327,600	114,280		3,041,500	3,483,380
	,			.,,,	-	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	250,000	114,200		+,/5/,500	5,102,500	527,000	114,200		5,041,550	5,405,500
Mentally Deficient Institution	IS															
Brainerd							20,000				20,000					
Cambridge				207,000		207,000	7,000			200,000	207,000	7,000			200,000	207,000
Faribault	94,000			1,344,000	1	,438,000	103,000			1,305,000	1,408,000	128,000			1,280,000	1,408,000
Lake Owasso	7,800					7,800	7,800				7,800	7,800				7,800
Owatonna		\$74,184				.14,184					30,000	30,000				30,000
Sub-Total	141,800	74,184		1,551,000	1	,766,984	167,800			1,505,000	1,672,800	172,800			1,480,000	1,652,800
Special Schools and Hospitals																
Braille	35,000					35,000	35,000				35,000	35,000				35,000
Deaf	1,000			700,000		701,000	1,000			700,000	701,000	1,000			700,000	701,000
Cillotto	73,000			,		73,000	5,500			,	5,500	5,500			700,000	5,500
∞ Glen Lake	45,000			75,000		120,000	15,000			105,000	120,000	15,000			105,000	120,000
Ah-Gwah-Ching	36,900			18,500		55,400	39,900			55,500	95,400	39,900			15,500	55,400
Sub-Total	190,900	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••		793,500		984,400	96,400			860,500	956,900	96,400			820,500	916,900
											,				,	,
Adult Corrections					_											
Reformatory for Men	104,600			2,092,200	2	,196,800	67,100			2,098,300	2,165,400	59,100			2,090,000	2,149,100
Reformatory for Women	48,700					48,700	48,700				48,700				48,700	48,700
State Prison	89,000			613,500		702,500	89,000			407,500	496,500	89,000			407,500	496,500
Sub-Total	242,300			2,705,700	2	,948,000	204,800			2,505,800	2,710,600	148,100			2,546,200	2,694,300
Youth Corrections																
Home School for Girls	40,000			65,000		105,000	40,000			250,000	290,000	40,000			40,000	80,000
Training School for Boys	50,631			•		50,631	50,631			185,000	235,631	50,631			40,000	50,631
Willow River Camp				12,000		12,000	12,000			,	12,000	12,000				12,000
Rochester Camp				,		,	40,000				40,000	40,000				40,000
Sub-Total	90,631			77,000		167,631	142,631		_	435,000	577,631	142,631	••••		40,000	182,631
State Calleges																
State Colleges Bemidji	53,000			1,045,000	1	000 000	120 000		0EE 000	030 050 B0	1 150 000	100 000				
Mankato	141,400			1,317,000		,098,000 ,458,400	128,000 153,400		\$55,000		1,153,000	128,000		\$55,000		1,153,000
Moorhead	53,000			1,177,000		,230,000				995,000	1,148,400	183,400			1,725,000	1,908,400
St. Cloud	68,000			2,355,000			127,000			970,000	1,097,000	127,000			1,103,000	1,230,000
Southwestern	00,000			5,000,000		,423,000	148,000			1,875,000	2,023,000	148,000			1,875,000	2,023,000
Winona	42 000				S	,000,000	72 000			4,276,250	4,276,250				4,276,250	4,276,250
Winong Dormitory & Food Service	43,000			848,000 3,000,000	°	891,000	73,000			818,000	891,000	43,000			848,000	891,000
•	250 / 60	···				·				3,000,000	3,000,000				3,000,000	3,000,000
Sub-Total	358,400			14,742,000	15	,100,400	629,400		55,00	0 12,904,250	13,588,650	629,400		55,000	13,797,250	14,481,650

#### TABLE XVII (cont.) Summary Comparison of Senate, House and Conference Building Bills 1965-67

Senate Conference House Reappro-Reappro-Other New General priated Other New General priated Other Revenue Balances Funds Borrowing Total Revenue Balances Funds Borrowing Total Revenue Balances Funds

....

New

Borrowing

Total

St. Paul - Minneapolis													
Metropolitan Area				\$2,150,000	\$2,150,000								
Rochester				1,800,000	1,800,000			\$1,080,000	\$1,080,000			\$1 080 000	\$1,080,000
Virginia-Eveleth				1,000,000	1,000,000			600,000	600,000			\$1,080,000	\$1,080,000 600,000
Fergus Falls				500,000	500,000			300,000	300,000			300,000	300,000
Hibbing				1,000,000	1,000,000			601,985	601,985				
Itasca				250,000	250,000			150,000	150,000			601,985	601,985
Brainerd				270,000	270,000			150,000	150,000			150,000	150,000
Northwest Metropolitan Ar	•a			270,000	270,000			1 200 000	1 000 000			162,000	162,000
Southwest Metropolitan Are								1,290,000	1,290,000			1,290,000	1,290,000
Sub-Total	······			6,970,000	6,970,000	*********		162,000	162,000				
Jud-Iotal				8,970,000	6,970,000			4,183,985	4,183,985			4,183,985	4,183,985
University of Minnesota													
Minneapolis				11,223,334	11,223,334			7,993,000	7,993,000			8,658,334	8,658,334
St. Paul				4,359,000	4,359,000			3,952,750	3,952,750			2,795,250	2,795,250
Duluth				1,865,000	1,865,000			1,621,500	1,621,500			1,446,500	1,446,500
Morris				1,525,000	1,525,000			1,480,000	1,480,000			1,480,000	1,480,000
Crookston				60,000	60,000			743,000	743,000			435,000	
😳 Waseca				57,000	57,000			57,000	57,000				435,000
Rosemount				45,000	45,000			45,000	45,000			57,000	57,000
Cloquet				33,000	33,000			33,000	33,000			45,000	45,000
Itasca				63,900	63,900							33,000	33,000
Excelsior				30,000	30,000			63,900	63,900			63,900	63, <del>9</del> 00
Lamberton				15,000	15,000			30,000	30,000			30,000	30,000
Sub-Total				19,276,234	the second s	<del>~~~~~</del>		15,000	15,000			15,000	15,000
545-10281				19,270,234	19,276,234			16,034,150	16,034,150			15,058,984	15,058,984
Land Acquisition													
State Colleges and Capito	1												
Areas				1,520,000	1,520,000			1,320,000	1,320,000			1,520,000	1,520,000
University				767,672	767,672			959,132	959,132			761,672	761,672
								•	,			701,072	/01,0/2
Capitol Group	337,832	39,301	250,000 <sup>b</sup>	644,118	1,271,252	400,000		250,000 <sup>b</sup> 3,438,350	4,088,350	411,332		250,000 <sup>b</sup> 3,428,600	4,089,932
Soldiers Home				1/0 750								· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Soluters none				148,750	148,750	85,000		60,000	145,000	85,000		60,000	145,000
Health Department				3,826,000	3,826,000			3,826,000	3,826,000				
								5,020,000	5,020,000			3,826,000	3,826,000
Contingencies													
Administration				200,000	200,000			100,000	100,000			100,000	100 000
<b>Higher Education Pacilitie</b>	2.6							2,500,000	2,500,000			4,000,000	100,000
									-,,,			4,000,000	4,900,000
Administration				100,000	100, <b>000</b>			100,000	100,000			100,000	100.000
Pool Process				, , ,								100,000	100,000
Bond Expense				25,000	25,000			25,000	25,000			25,000	25,000
TOTALS	1,648,463	113,486	250,000	54,603,474	56,615,424	1,976,631	114,280	305,000 55,494,667	57,890,578	2,013,263	114,280	305,000 54,789,691	57.222.234
													,

(a) Appropriated from Building Outlay Account.

(b) Appropriated from Surplus Property Revolving Fund.

A

Reappro-

General priated

Junior Colleges

6